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2012 30 ( ) ( ) ( )
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2013 30 ’ ’ ’
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2014 30 ’ ’ ’
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2014 (1,650) (116,400) (510,820)
2015 30 ’ ’ ’
11
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2016 30 ’ ’ ’
12
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2017 30 ’ ’ ’
13
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14
2013 6,954,910 307,260 10,035,420
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2021 12 31
180

2021 12 31
180

120

30

30

30
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2021

31

2021

23

2020
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30

23 103

25 193

UFJ 109.90
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2021 30 2020 30
3,4,8,12 896,806,006 98,558,980 927,902,509 101,976,486
8 84,094,808 9,242,019 103,732,960 11,400,252
6 825,519 90,725 2,655 292
4,8 251,152 27,602
4,485,873 492,997 4,890,638 537,481
3,8 10,568,210 1,161,446 27,914,910 3,067,849

996,780,416 109,546,168 1,064,694,824 117,009,961

3,4,8,12 225,413,366 24,772,929 245,836,079 27,017,385
8,11 296,957,529 32,635,632 369,505,963 40,608,705
6 1,449,133 159,260 398,707 43,818
4,8 18,897 2,077 80,143 8,808
4,8 73,592 8,088
8,9 547,090 60,125 516,376 56,750
8,9 179,792 19,759 286,094 31,442
8 750,000 82,425 8,140,577 894,649
8,9 336,790 37,013 312,090 34,299
525,726,189 57,777,308 625,076,029 68,695,856
8 471,054,227 51,768,860 439,618,795 48,314,106
471,093,124 51,773,134 439,559,645 48,307,605
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2021 30 2020 30
22,663,761 2,490,747 24,900,994 2,736,619
112,836 12,401 (17,826) (1,959)
33,635,526 3,696,544 (45,526, 155) (5,003,324)

5,135 564
56,417,258 6,200,257 (20,642,987) (2,268,664)
9 6,630,571 728,700 7,041,534 773,865
9 131,808 14,486 157,445 17,303
9 88,294 9,704 69,585 7,647
9 386,807 42,510 390,696 42,937
9 82,500 9,067 82,500 9,067
9 86,425 9,498 86,435 9,499
119,542 13,138 101,406 11,145
7,525,947 827,102 7,929,601 871,463
48,891,311 5,373,155 (28,572,588) (3,140,127)
(17,187,048) (1,888,857) (22,938,194) (2,520,908)
31,704,263 3,484,299 (51,510,782) (5.661,035)
(1,391) (153) (4,216) (463)
31,702,872 3,484,146 (51,514,998) (5,661,498)
31,702,872 3,484,146 (51,514,998) (5,661,498)
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2020 30

439,618,795 48,314,106 467,026,048 51,326,163
31,702,872 3,484,146 (51,514,998) (5,661,498)
57,205,297 6,286,862 65,670,846 7,217,226

(35,008,019) (3,847,381) (34,923,482) (3,838,091)

(22,464,718) (2,468,873) (6,639,619) (729,694)

(267,440) (29,392) 24,107,745 2,649,441

471,054,227 51,768,860 439,618,795 48,314,106
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2021 30 2020 30
31,702,872 3,484,146 (51,514,998) (5.661,498)

3 (40,575, 740) (4,459,274) (37,356,709) (4,105,502)
3,5 1,391 153 4,216 463
7 17,187,048 1,888,857 22,938,194 2,520,908
17,910,588 1,968,374 12,451,499 1,368,420

(112,836) (12,401) 17,826 1,959

26,113,323 2,869,854 (53,459,972) (5,875,251)

8 19,638,152 2,158,233 52,473,206 5,766,805
8,11 (72,548, 434) (7,973,073) 102,629,298 11,278,960
4,8 18,240 2,005
4,8 251,152 27,602 (251,152) (27,602)
8,9 (106,302) (11,683) 76,272 8,382
4,8 (61,246) (6,731) 80,143 8,808
4,8 73,592 8,088 (347,941) (38,239)
8,9 30,714 3,375 (66,958) (7,359)
3.8 (4,743) (521)
8 (7,390,577) (812,224) 5,887,841 647,074
8,9 24,700 2,715 (47,594) (5,231)
3,4,8,12 31,096,503 3,417,506 (174,029,605)  (19,125,854)
3,4,8,12 (20,422,713) (2,244 ,456) 20,820,199 2,288,140
(23,301,136) (2.,560,795) (46,222,766) (5.,079,882)

23,068,526 2,535,231 24,589,875 2,702,427

(232,610) (25,564) (21,632,891) (2,377,455)

7 (17,187,048) (1,888,857) (22,938,194) (2,520,908)
6 56,382,433 6,196,429 65,668,191 7,216,934
6 (56,422,311) (6,200,812) (41,171,731) (4,524,773)
(17,226,926) (1,893,239) 1,558,266 171,253
(17,459,536) (1,918,803) (20,074,625) (2,206,201)

3,8 27,914,910 3,067,849 48,007,361 5,276,009
112,836 12,401 (17,826) (1,959)

3,8 10,568,210 1,161,446 27,914,910 3,067,849
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2021 30
2021 30 471,052,864
2020 30 439,618,795 2020
2021 30
2005 18 2005 18
2005 13

2005 13
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60

12
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2021 30 2020 30

2021 30 2020 30
241,311 1,065
627,417 140,083

9,699,482 27,773,762

10,568,210 27,914,910
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41,616,000 2020 57,413,760
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to be announced
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39
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12
2021 30 2020 30
2021 30 2020 30
300 10
50,000
1,000,000 10,000,000
10,000
50,000
3.25
4.00

300 10
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2021 2020 2021 2020
30 30 30 30
57,921,525 56,053,237 1,086 1,086
4,122,319 5,373,805
(4,994,164) (3,505,517)
57,049,680 57,921,525 1,086 1,086
2021 2020 2021 2020
30 30 30 30
54,761,525 60,047,420 18,926,710 10,035,420
9,154,255 9,931,980
(5,520,480) (5,285,895) (3,587,694) (1,040,690)
49,241,045 54,761,525 24,493,271 18,926,710
2021 30
100 2020 100 2021 30
100 2020 100 2021
30 100
2020 100 2021 30
100 2020 100

17,222,140
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15

2020

65

0.2985

11,673,118
0.312
4,994,176

2020

22,975,132

5,513,930
0.348
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0.4031
2020
0.222 2020 17,944,018
0.258
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88 2020 91
2021 30 2020 30
105,000,000 237,000,000
74,007,245
1,094,253,055 1,227,422,845
105,000,000 265,000,000
48,904,647
822,292,544 706,596,055
1,553 1,275
549,065,404 401,370,471
1,549,672,000 1,947,958,635
42,459,853 56,636,901
364,289,929 260,136,439
38,264,916 38,813,000
127,372,500 115,552,000
*
17.78 12.93 2020 11.97
10
xx 1,553 295,927,747
2020 1,275 267,134,407
2021 30 2020 30
158,100,000 116,700,000
96,000,000 75,700,000

1,089,200,000 1,099,500,000

177,100,000 153,200,000
87,700,000 65,000,000
859,800,000 701,600,000

1,000 1,000
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446,800,000 291,900,000
1,200,000
1,637,100,000 1,915,400,000
59,100,000 65,500,000
319,400,000 199,700,000
162,700,000 143,900,000
9,600,000

276,000,000 2020 530,500,000

99

2021 30 0.86

2020 30 0.92
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2021 30 5.84 0.04 5.85
2020 30 6.29 0.09 6.31
2021 30

691,687 691,687

1,956,512 1,956,512

524,902 524,902

3,529,486 8,162,706 11,692,192

50,312 50,312

868,043 868,043

29,933 29,933

288,014 288,014

73,723 73,723

62,559 62,559

3,529,486 12,708,391 16,237,877
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380,044 380,044
1,055,696 1,055,696
404,316 404,316
12,956,849 12,956,849
1,289,435 1,289,435
648,578 648,578
31,544 31,544
147,197 147,197
76,645 76,645
16,990,304 16,990,304
504 504
6 6
47 a7
240,754 240,754
241,311 241,311
2020 30
167,314 167,314
92,322 693,996 786,318
173,120 3,690,474 3,863,594
1,447,337 1,447,337
40,933 40,933
201,717 201,717
1,977,112 9,708,807 11,685,919
1,504 1,504
459,819 459,819
59 59
1,247,119 1,247,119
882,507 882,507
228,307 228,307
71,584 71,584
1,526,736 1,526,736
16,616 16,616
2,409,868 20,217,515 22,627,383
608,753 608,753
2,745,664 2,745,664
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590,272 590,272
24,592 24,592
753,478 753,478
11,970,668 11,970,668
31,079 31,079
820,368 820,368
64,680 64,680
173,196 173,196
3,564,273 3,564,273
288,866 288,866
14,792 14,792
237,581 237,581
21,888,262 21,888,262
6 6

354 354

5 5

41 41

659 659

1,065 1,065
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2021
30 221
2021 30
9,699,482 868,728 10,568,210
84,094,808 84,094,808
825,519 825,519
4,485,873 4,485,873
118,224,192 80,211,250 696,116,156 2,254,187 896,805, 785
127,923,674 80,211,250 696,116,156 92,529,115 996,780,195
296,957,529 296,957,529
1,449,133 1,449,133
18,897 18,897
73,592 73,592
750,000 750,000
547,090 547,090
179,792 179,792
336,790 336,790
4,117,657 14,203,351 203,874,512 3,217,846 225,413,366
4,210,146 14,203,351 204,624,512 302,688,180 525,726,189
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2020 30
27,773,762 141,148 27,914,910
103,732,960 103,732,960
2,655 2,655
251,152 251,152
4,890,638 4,890,638
114,108,748 68,426,824 742,168,188 3,198,749 927,902,509

142,133,662 68,426,824 742,168,188 111,966,150 1,064,694,824

369,505,963 369,505,963

398,707 398,707

80,143 80,143

5,926,000 1,558,759 655,818 8,140,577

516,376 516,376

286,094 286,094

312,090 312,090

7,021,725 16,180,507 217,903,805 4,730,042 245,836,079

13,027,868 17,739,266 218,559,623 375,749,272 625,076,029
2021 30 2020 30

23,954 541,443

22,639,807 24,359,551

22,663,761 24,900,994

2021 30 2020 30
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2021 30 221

2021 30

166,387,682 38,464,576 791,927,937 996,780,195

193,274,492 103,683,037 296,957,529
1,449,133 1,449,133
18,897 18,897
73,592 73,592
750,000 750,000

547,090 547,090
179,792 179,792
336,790 336,790

1,468,312 3,781,955 220,163,099 225,413,366

197,348,098 107,464,992 220,913,099 525,726,189
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2020 30

199,262,303 30,474,807 834,957,714 1,064,694,824

369,505,963 369,505,963
398,707 398,707
80,143 80,143
5,926,000 2,214,577 8,140,577
516,376 516,376
286,094 286,094
312,090 312,090

600,785 7,387,746 237,847,548 245,836,079

377,626,158 7,387,746 240,062,125 625,076,029

41,616,000
2020 57,413,760
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2021 2020
30 30
66.12 78.77
0.72 1.71
1.82 1.33
8.28 12.77
16.76 20.32
11.84 9.52
6.20 3.80
17.34 12.70
8.64 12.78
(37.72) (53.70)
100.00 100.00

2021 30 2020 30

98/259



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

29,325,035 2020 17,703,733
30,064,000 2020 17,694,645
10
2021 30
41.07 362,136,779 2020
46.31 418,352,725

2021 30 2020 30
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820,216,783 805,169,570
40,800,000 56,288,000
. 31,397,127 63,011,766
10,568,210 27,914,910
84,094,808 103,732,960
825,519 2,655
4,485,873 4,890,638
251,152

12

2021 30 2020 30

12

2020
2020
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2021

30

221 221
5,636,722 5,636,722
750,000 750,000
326,564 326,564
1,857,270 1,857,270
6,514,895 6,514,895
1,984,535 1,984,535
1,541,317 1,541,317
1,468,148 1,468,148
5,617,674 5,617,674
11,979,697 11,979,697
1,796,270 1,796,270
739,409 739,409
4,916,373 4,916,373
6,363,299 6,363,299
6,781,377 6,781,377
16,645,986 16,645,986
4,932,325 4,932,325
14,358,357 14,358,357
10,495,077 10,495,077
6,219,054 6,219,054
4,138,691 4,138,691
717,182 717,182
1,944,452 1,944,452
60,025,456 60,025,456
101,545,441 101,545,441
30,562,736 30,562,736
56,120,290 56,120,290
702,600 702,600
9,676,476 9,676,476
1,473,896 1,473,896
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1,700,508 1,700,508
237,102 237,102
2,517,750 2,517,750
851,647 851,647
83,827 83,827
1,863,469 1,863,469
373,523 373,523
365,873 365,873
112,927,491 112,927,491
372,643,100 372,643,100
750,000 870,646,080 871,396,080
2,254,187 2,254,187
10,312,092 10,312,092
108,227 108,227
12,735,420 12,735,420
25,409,926 25,409,926
896,806,006

9,699,482 9,699,482
20,947,559 20,947,559
6,018,143 6,018,143
199,898 199,898
3,217,846 3,217,846
9,048,446 9,048,446
68,478 68,478
36,916,634 36,916,634
49,251,404 49,251,404
161,037,034 161,037,034
442,485 442,485
14,682,443 14,682,443

225,413,366
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17,747,696 17,747,696

14,258,049 14,258,049
182,978 182,978

105/259



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020

30

9,235,869 9,235,869
5,926,000 2,214,577 8,140,577
638,099 638,099
1,409,274 1,409,274
3,065,762 3,065,762
1,749,941 1,749,941
60,329 60,329
954,067 954,067
2,973,325 2,973,325
9,685,375 9,685,375
741,179 741,179
328,329 328,329
8,075,110 8,075,110
7,092,712 7,092,712
11,237,929 11,237,929
16,695,149 16,695,149
5,455,076 5,455,076
13,413,438 13,413,438
10,701,468 10,701,468
7,654,983 7,654,983
3,386,696 3,386,696
399,578 399,578
3,615,115 3,615,115
45,118,384 45,118,384
82,539,182 82,539,182
33,473,895 33,473,895
44,284,129 44,284,129
1,707,513 1,707,513
20,516,845 20,516,845
788,580 788,580
1,698,202 1,698,202
556,957 556,957
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2,240,010 2,240,010
864,187 864,187
118,880 118,880

81,255 81,255
520,793 520,793
141,955 141,955
126,100 126,100

84,420,500 84,420,500
437,775,181 437,775,181
5,926,000 877,755,928 883,681,928
3,198,749 3,198,749
22,388,844 22,388,844
621,120 621,120
18,011,868 18,011,868
44,220,581 44,220,581
927,902,509

27,773,762 27,773,762
37,950,949 37,950,949
6,032,412 6,032,412
12,165 12,165
4,730,042 4,730,042
11,969,251 11,969,251
244,673 244,673
38,540,769 38,540,769
55,484,735 55,484,735
169,689,843 169,689,843
1,403,012 1,403,012
19,258,489 19,258,489

245,836,079
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40,754,830 40,754,830
6,965,593 6,965,593
628,191 628,191

2021 30 2020 30
9,699,482 27,773,762
747,339,292 768,896,493

221
40,800,000 56,288,000
2020

72,127,491 28,132,500
35,789,002 66,444,939
750,000 8,140,577
906,505,488 955,676,271

2021 30 2020 30
23,821,655 13,362,582
9,926,707 (58,906,578)
33,748,362 (45,543,996)
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2.00 0.60

1.60 1.00

4,307,212
2020 4,664,380

1.80 1.20

22,500

0.02 60,000 15,000
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0.10

0.10

67,500
0.0030

5,000

2021 30 2020 30

300,000
75,000
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10
5,135
11
2017 27 LIBOR FCA 2021 LIBOR
LIBOR
2020 11 LIBOR
12 LIBOR 2023 30
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR LIBOR
LIBOR
2023 30
2020 COVID-19
COVID-19
COVID-19

12
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Bank of Barclays Barclays Capital Inc. BofA Securities, Citibank,
America N.A. Bank PLC (clearing broker) Inc. N.A.
2021 30
§ 291,886
*# 49,378 8,687
§ 784,584
*#
*#
150,048 7,174 81,201
# 3,536,653 137,086 1,009,711
**H 486,740 376,036 83,742
*x #
"ok 40,800,000
4,173,441 569,674 1,076,470 40,800,000 1,183,341
§ 474,071
* # 3,454 8,602
§ 675,991
*# 656,198
*#
124,941 245,868 185,812
# 3,187,418 107,916 857,397
# 577,954 745,644 1,110,223
#
4,549,965 1,108,030 1,150,062 2,153,432
(376,524) (538,356) (73,592) 40,800,000 (970,091)
# (3 (254,000) (514,000) 40,800,000 (970,091)
(122,524) (24,356) (73,592)
TBA folel
TBA *x
41,616,000
TBA i (254,000) (514,000) (1,052,000)
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Deutsche Goldman Sachs HSBC Bank USA,

Markets, Inc. International Bank AG International National Association
2021 30
§
* H# 7,114 23,194
§
*#
* # 1,246,426 2,466,955 902,645
15,498 526,878 106,480
235,135
kol 2,215,333
*x #
Kk
1,246,426 2,489,567 3,903,185 106,480
§
* # 16,723 389 17,435
§
*# 6,706,019 5,554,558 4,863,573
* #
66,543 304,130 196,194
280,373
# 1,598,078
#
6,706,019 5,637,824 389 7,063,589 196,194
(5,459,593) (3,148,257) (389) (3,160,404) (3,905,817)
## 15 (5,422,000) (3,148,257) (3,160,404) (3,905,817)
(37,593) (389)
TBA *x
TBA xx
TBA el (5,422,000) (3,272,000) (110,000) (4,114,000)
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Merrill Lynch

Morgan Stanley &

NatWest

Bank N.A. Securities LLC International Co.International PLC Markets PLC
2021 30
§
* H# 4,510 15,344
§
*#
* # 2,125,819 661,272 1,005,339
306
98,286 180,170 10,036
1,786,782 413,502
**H# 1,727,900 4,042,713
** 702,600
Kk
4,320,078 2,141,469 661,272 5,641,724 10,036
§
* # 9,704 2,038 10,133
§
*# 7,183,559 1,117,683 6,508,080
* #
19,203
192,115 323,942 245,780
2,538,771 303,235
# 5,042,820 4,152,411
# 442,485
8,225,895 7,204,800 1,117,683 11,297,801 245,780
(3,905,817) (5,063,331) (456,411) (5,656,077) (235,744)
## 15 (3,905,817) (5,063,331) (386,000) (5,656,077) (235,744)
(70,411)
TBA *x
TBA xx
TBA el (4,114,000) (5,072,000) (386,000) (5,833,000) (282,000)
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State Street Bank
and Trust Co.
2021 30

Toronto-
Dominion Bank

UBS AG Wells Fargo WestPac
Bank, N.A. Banking Corp.

750,530

*x 4
*k 4

Fk

96,226
452,915
295,360

150,622
2,058,553
448,652

81,038
681,755

291,886

108,227

784,584

8,408,456
306
2,254,187
10,312,092
9,676,476
702,600
40,800,000

750,530

844,501

2,657,827 681,755 81,038

73,338,814

624,990

210,959
239,751
619,668

358,187
1,220,907
835,645

138,385
312,678

474,071

68,478

675,991

32,589,670

19,203
3,217,846
9,048,446

14,682,443
442,485

624,990

1,070,378

2,414,739 312,678 138,385

61,218,633

125,540

(225,877)

243,088 369,077 (57,347)

12,120,181

(111,000)

(225,877)

(57,347)

243,088 369,077

236,540

TBA **

TBA *

TBA o (111,000)

(253,000)

350,000 400,000

750,000
41,616,000

(131,000) (30,064,000)

115/259



**

Hit

808,000

116/259

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10,280,000



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Bank of Barclays Barclays Capital Inc. BofA Securities, Citibank,
America N.A. Bank PLC (clearing broker) Inc. N.A.
2020 30
§ 1,082,998
*# 7,682 346,865 73,270
§ 351,744
*#
*#
220,442 407,203 111,887
# 3,037,130 280,122 2,828,860
**H 443,919 1,958,947
il 180,871 114,927
*x 56,288,000
3,446,125 1,478,109 1,434,742 56,288,000 5,087,891
§ 981,295
* # 76,801
§ 202,295
*# 754,650
*#
181,114 219,814 168,147
# 1,084,740 109,424 943,120
# 796,491 2,270,287
# 64,976 43,110
2,085,480 1,202,530 1,183,590 3,424,664
1,360,645 275,579 251,152 56,288,000 1,663,227
# (3 1,345,910 56,288,000
## (il 275,579 1,663,227
14,735 251,152
TBA i 1,345,910
TBA ekl 290,000 1,800,000
57,413,760
TBA i
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Citigroup Global Credit Suisse Deutsche Goldman Sachs HSBC Bank USA,
Markets, Inc. International Bank AG International National Association
2020 30
§
*# 97,735 70,418
§
*#
* # 3,667,753 4,041,224 1,419,700
166,731 550,039 190,177
# 3,107,227
kol 1,141,734
x4 248,682
Kk
3,667,753 4,305,690 6,537,800 190,177
§
* # 17,546 4,422 47,019
§
*# 7,832,104 7,745,901 5,873,207
* #
370,635 1,134,597 331,161
# 1,209,880
# 710,669
# 62,650
7,832,104 8,134,082 4,422 9,038,022 331,161
(4,164,351) (3,828,392) (4,422) (2,500,222) (140,984)
## 15 (3,966,217) (3,794,930) (2,500,222) (100,980)
(198,134) (33,462) (4,422) (40,004)
TBA folel
TBA *x
TBA el (3,966,217) (3,794,930) (2,520,413) (100,980)
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Merrill Lynch

Morgan Stanley &

NatWest

Bank N.A. Securities LLC International Co.International PLC Markets PLC
2020 30
§
*# 20,043 5,107
§
*#
* # 4,390,240 2,170,606 2,257,425
327,981 133,469
9,269,188 2,727,428
**H# 4,352,733 11,284,945
** 1,163,033
Kk
15,132,978 4,395,347 2,170,606 16,269,798 133,469
§
* # 10,750 88,135
§
*# 8,205,645 1,436,106 6,628,236
* #
80,143
1,032,706 369,521
5,447,232 1,940,184
# 3,540,118 10,063,021
# 1,232,276
11,263,082 8,373,923 1,436,106 18,631,441 369,521
3,869,896 (3,978,576) 734,500 (2,361,643) (236,052)
## 15 734,500 (2,361,643) (236,052)
## 10 3,800,000 (3,838,561)
69,896 (140,015)
TBA ** 756,293
TBA ** 3,800,000 36,000
TBA el (3,838,561) (2,707,767) (250,952)
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State Street Bank Toronto-Dominion UBS AG WestPac
and Trust Co. Bank Banking Corp.
2020 30
§ 1,082,998
* 4 621,120
§ 351,744
*#
* # 17,946,948
582,370 235,163 139,780 133,507 3,198,749
# 1,138,889 22,388,844
**H# 123,020 1,211,547 20,516,845
w4 1,707,513
wox 56,288,000
582,370 358,183 2,490,216 133,507 124,102,761
§ 981,295
* 4 244,673
§ 202,295
*# 38,475,849
* #
80,143
655,646 79,470 152,313 34,918 4,730,042
# 1,234,671 11,969,251
# 327,747 1,550,156 19,258,489
# 1,403,012
655,646 407,217 2,937,140 34,918 77,345,049
(73,276) (49,034) (446,924) 98,589 46,757,712
## 15 (49,034) (403,847) 98,589
(73,276) (43,077)
TBA folel 112,374 2,214,577
TBA ** 5,926,000
57,413,760
TBA el (110,978) (403,847) (17,694,645)
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1,096,621 6,303,865

2021 12

2021 12

2021 30
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Combined statements of financial position

End of each reparting period
April30

ASSETS
CurrentAssets Notes 2021 2020
Finarcial assetsat fairvalue through nrofitorioss” 1,4,8,12 §B96, 506,005 S8 202,509
Lales of maestments swvalting settlement ] 84,094 808 103732 360
Subscriptions of units avwaking seftlement 6 5SS LESG
Apepivable for varation mangin on centrally cleared swap contracls 1.8 - FEINEN
Interest and cther receivables 4 ABSATE 4890638
Cash and cash equhalents 38 10,568,210 21504810
Total Assets 896,730,415 1,064,694, 824
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Financial [abilties at fzirvalue though profitorloss” 3.4,8,12 125413355 25535079
Purchases of investmants awaiting sexlampnt 811 256957525 369,505,963
Redemptions of units awaiting settiement & 1448,133 398,707
Payabie for varigtion margin of Riunes contrasts 4,3 18897 80,143
Payabie forvariation masginon centrally cleared swap contracts 48 73,552 -
Fayablefor management fees 8% 547050 515376
Payabie for custody and administrathe fees 89 179,792 BaE004
Colistesal on sertain darvative contracts, atvalue g TS0 B1+05TT
Orther aconoed expenses &5 335,190 312080
Total Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable ta holders
of redeemable units) 525,726,159 625,006,029
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units at bid/ask prices 8 54T1,054,227 %439,618,795
Het Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units of the:
Putram Diversified Inoarme Trust {ayman) 54TL03.124 439 550,545

* See Note 300

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financia statements.

Putriam Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman} &
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Combined statements of comprehensive income (loss)

For the yearsended
April 30

OPERATING INCOME/{LOSS) Hatez 0721 00
Interest from financial assets and financial Gabiities o1 fair value through profiter loss 3 $22653,76L 524,500,994
Mt realized and changa in unreallzed gainloss) of sssets and Habilites in forelgn currencies 112836 7825
fmﬁt’:ﬁ“&nﬁmﬁmm gain/flogs) on financial assets and financial liabifites atfair —— P
Mt incregse from payments by affiliates bl 5135 -
Total operatingincame/{loss} 55,417,258 {20,642,587)
OPERATING EXPENSES

Manapement fees | BEIGSTL 1,041,534
Custody fees 9 171508 157445
Administrathve fees ) 58,294 59,585
Transfer agenthees 9 348,807 390,696
Trszee fees 4 82,500 B2.500
Aodiviees 9 B5415 55,435
Orher expenses 9 119,543 101,405
Totel operating cxpenses 7525947 7,523,601
Operating profit/[loss) 48,291,311 (28,572,588]
Financa Costs

Distibutions to habders of radeamable Lnits T 11787 048) 12 238,104
Profit/[Loss) after distributions and before tax 31,704,263 (51,510,782
Wathholding tasies 3.5 (5,381} 1%216)
Profit{[Loss} after distributions and tax 31,702,872 {51,514,558)
m in met assets attributable to holders of redeemable unlts N N

The accompanying notes ane an integral part of these financial statements.

Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman) T
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Combined statements of changes in net assets

attributable to holders of redeemable units

Fer the years ended
Agril30
Meote 2021 2020

Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units at the beginniag of vear 5439,618,T85 SRET, 026,045
Increase/|Decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units
;ﬁnmﬂﬁwﬂ- " 21,702,872 {51,514,988]
REDEEMABLE UNIT TRANSACTIONS
Proceeds from units issued

Class ) B - -

Class M E ET. 208247 B5AT0.546
Yalwe of units redeemad

Class B (35,008,015 [34,923.482)

Llass b & {23 454 T1E) (6/639,815
Increasef{Decroase) in ret assets resulting from redeemable unit transactions (267, 440) 24,107,745
Met Assets attributable to holders of redesmable units atthe end of year i §4T1L,054,297 $439,618,T55

The accomparying notes ane an integral part of these financial statements.

Putniam Diversified Income Trast Funds (Caymen) -]
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Combined statements of cash flows

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
IncreassiDecrease) in net assets atirbutable to holders of redesmable units from operations

Adjistment to reconcle sperating profitiss) for the finzl period to net cash generated trom/
{used in] eperating activities

fnterest from fingncial 2ssets and financial [Eabalities 3 fair value thaough proft erkoss
ViR helding taes

DistribuSions o the kolders of redeemableunits

Het amortization of premiums

Exchange gains/losses) on cash and cashiequivaients

Kot fincreasal/decrense in zales of investrmants waiting seltlement

Het increasefdecreace) in purchases of Irvestments swaiting sestlement

Mt increass)ydecrease in receivable for variation margin on futures contracts

et (incresss) Hecrease in receivabds forvarigtion margin oo centrally cleared swap contracts
Net incresse Ndecrease) in payable for custody and administrative feas

et increasefidecrease) in payable Sorvariation manginen futires contracts

Heatincrease fdecrease) in payatle forvariation margin on centrally ceared swap contracts
Metincreass fdecrease] it payable for management fees

et Increase Tdecrease) in payabie 1o custodian

et Increasa/f{decreasch in collateral on certein derivative contracts, atvalui

et increase/{decraasel in payable forother accrued expenses

Mt {increse)decmase infirancial assots at falrvaue through prafitor loss
Metinctessadecraass) in financial abilities at Salrvalue through profitor oss

Cash flows generated fromf{used in) operating activities

Innedest receivec

Met cash generated fromy{used in] operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

[sarbutions patd tothe holders of redeemable Units
Proceeds from radeematie units

Redemptions of receemable units

Mat cash generated from{used in) financing activities
et incraase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalants
Cash and cash equivalents 2t begining of year

Exchange (gairs}/iosses cnicash and cash equivalents
Cash and cach equivalents at and of year

EDINETOOOO
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For the years ended
April 30

Hotes 2021 2020
53LT0EAT2 [%51,514.998)
3 {80,575,740} (37,356,708
33 Las 4,215
T 17187048 ¥1538,194
17,910,588 12451493
(112,535 1TE6
26,113,323 153,459,572
] 19,535,152 S2ATIZ06
81 (2543434 102529, 298
48 - 18,240
4.5 151,152 (251,153
55 (106,302 6272
4,8 [aL248) B,143
48 73552 (aTee0)
5.9 0Ti4 (546, 958)
38 - W
g (7,390,577} 588741
B4 34,700 (47,554
34812 31,054,503 {174,00:9,505)
34812 ROAETLR NE005E
[23,301,138) 146,222 T66)
23,088,526 24,589.875
{233,510} (21,632,591}
T (17187048, (22,908,194
& 56,382,433 65,565,191
& (56,422,300 HLITLTI
117,226,526} 1,558,266
(17,459,536} {20,074,625)
3,8 aMA0 23007351
112,835 (27,825)
18 $10,568,210 527,914,510

The accompanying nates are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to combined financial statements 4/30/21

1. ORGANIZATION

Within the following Notes to combined financial statements, references o "State Srreat”, if any, represent State Street Bank and Trust Company
and references 1o *OTC, fany, represent cverthe-counter References to “funds’ net assets” are based on net assets of $471,052,884 at Apil 30,
2021; 5435,614.705 at Apei] 30, 2020, Unless otherwise noted, the “repesting pesiod” represents the period from May 1, 2020 through Apeil 30, 202L

Syutnamn Diversified Incame Trust [Cayman] Master Fund {the "Master Fung®) is 2 series trust of the Putnam Ofshore Master Sefies Trust (the
*asker Trust®), pussuant to a Master Base Trust Deed dated August 18, 2005 and a Master First Supplemendtal Trust Deed dated August 18, 2005
between CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman] Limfted (since renamed te FirstCaribbean International Bank end Trest Comparty [Cayrnan)
Lissited) and The Putnam Advisasy Campany, LLC (PAC). Putnam Diversified Income Trust (Cayman) (the “Feeder Fund”) Is 2 series trust of the
Putnam Ofishore Feeder Series Trust {the "Feeder Trust™), pursuant o a Feeder Sase Trust Deed dated July 13,3005 (s amended) anda Feader
Sunplemenital Trust Deed dated July 12, 2005 (35 smended) between MapbesFs Limitad and The Putnam Advisory Company, LLE. The Master and
Feeder Trustsare registerad under the Mutual Funds Act [As Revised) of the Cayman Islends.

The Master Fund and Feadar Fund aperate 25 2 masterfeeder fund structure icollectively the “funds" (each indhidualiya “fund®) whereby
substansiatly all of the net assets of the Feeder Fund arefnvested in units of the Master Fund. These combined financial statements 2re in respact
afthe funds, comprising the Master Fund and the Feeder Fund.

Separate books and records ane maintained for each fund in order to determine the ret asset valve for the Feeder Fund. The Feeder Fund hasthe
serme inferent risks as the Master Fund.

The manager of the funde is The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC (the “Manager”), a Fmited Uabilfty company organized urder the laws of the State
of Delaware, U,5.4, State Street (the *Custadian”) s the custodlan of the funids.

Theinvestment objective of the funds is ta seek 25 high 2 level of curnent income as the Manager believes is consistent with presenvation of
cepitel, The Manager will seek to achieve the funds” shjective by investing mainly in bonds that are securitized debtinstruments and other
obEgations of companies and governments worldwide, are either investment-grade or below investment-grade (high yield bondg), and have
intermediate to long-term maturities {three yearsorionger). '

Z. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These combined financial statements have been prepared in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards ['IFRS") as published
By the international Atcounting Standards Board (1455, The principal sccounting policies have been applied consistently by the funds for all
pefiogs presented, uniess otherwise stated.

Current period and prior year combined financial statements of the funds are presented on & combined basis as management considers that
the Master Fund and the Feeder Fund represent one repodting entity ghven the mannae in which the entities are managed, References to the
financial statements heseaRer are to be considered on 2 combined bag's, Intragroup belances and transactions, including Income, expenses and
dividends, are eliminated in full.

The Menzger mekes estimates and assum ptions concerming the future that may affect the reparted amounts of assets and liabiities. Estimatis
are continually evaluated end besed on historical experience and other factors, Including expectatians of future events that are believed to be
reasonable undes the sircurmatances. Antue! resulis cowld differ from those estimates and diferences could be material.

3, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The following is 2 surmmary of the significant accounting 2nd reporting pelicies used in preparing the financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on 2 historical cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets and lizbifties clas-
sified at Falrvalue through profit or loss. The preperation of financial statements in confarmity with IFRS, requires managemant o make esti-
imates and assumptions that 3fact the amaunts reported in the inancial statements and accompanying notes. Actual resufts could differ from
these estimates.

(a) Financial instruments
(i) Classification

The Mastes Fund classifies its investments based on both the Master Fund's business mode! for managing those finzncisl assetsand

the contractial cash Fiow charzcueristics of the financial assets, The partiolio of financial assets s managed and performance isevalu-
ated on a fairvalue basis. The Master Fund iz primarily facused on fairvalue information and uses that information to 853ess the assets’
performance and to make dedigions, The Master Fund has nat taken the option to Irrevocably designate any equity securities as fair value
through other comprehensive income: The contractual cash fows of the Master Fund's debt securities are solely principal and interest,
howsever, these securities are not hedd for the purpase of collecting contractual cash flows. The eollection of contractuad cash flows ks anly
incidental to achieving the Master Fund's business model’s objective. Consequenity, 21l investments are measurad at fairvaluz through
profit o boss. Dervative contracts that have a negative fair value ane presented as liabilities at fair value through profit o loss. As such, in

Putnam Diversified income Trust Funds (Cayman) 10
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aceosdance with IFRS 9, the Master Fund classifies all of its investrent portfolie as financial assets or Babllities at fair vabse through prafi;
or loss

(ii} Recognition/Derecognition

Purchases and sales of westments are recagnized on the trade date - the date on which the Master Fund comanits to purchase or sell
the investment. imvestments ane derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from theinvestments have exgired and the Master
Eund hias transfermed substantially a1l risks and rewards of ownership. Securities purchased or sold on a farward commitment ar dedayed
delivery basis may be settled at a future date beyond customary settlement tirme; interest Income is secrued based oo the terms of the
secusities, Losses may arise due to changes In the fairvalie of the underlying securities or if the counterparty does not perform under
the contract.

Purchases and szles of investments awaiting settiement represent payabiles for securities purchased and receivables for securites sold
thak have been contracted for but nat yersettled or delivered on the staterment of financizl position date respectividy. The dise from
braskase balance, if any, is held for colloction. These amounts are recognised initiatiy at fair value 2nd subsequently measuned at amortised
cost. At each reporting date, the Master Fund shall measure the loss 2llowange on amounts duefrom braker at an amount equai to the
[etime expected cradit losses if the credit rick Ras increased significantly since initial recognition. If, at the reporting date, the credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Master Fund shall measure the loss allowance atan amaunt equal to 12-manth
expected credit losses. Significant financial difficuitios of tha beoker, prebability that the broker will enter bankruptcy or financizl reargans
sation, and default in payments ane all considered indicators that 2 loss allowance may be required. Ifthe credit riskincreases to the paint
that itis considered to be credis impained, interest Income will be calellated based on the gross camying amaunt acjusted for the koss
aliowerice. A significant increase in credit risk is defined by managemant asany contractual payrent which is more than 30 days pastdue,
Any contractual payment which is more than 90 days past due is considered cradit impaired.

{ifi} Measurement

Financial assets and Financiz] Fabilities at fairvalue through profit or loss ane inftizlly recognized atfair value. Transaction costs are
secarded in the Staterments of cormprehensive income (loss) as part of the net reslized and change in unrealized gain/floss) on firancial
assets and financizt liabilities at fair value through profitor loss. Subsequent to initial recognition, 2l financial assets at fairvalue through
prodit ar loss are measured at fairvatue, Gains and fosses anizing from changes in the fair value of the Financlal Assets or Financial
Liahiities at fairvalue through profit or inss” categary are presented in the Statements of comprehensive income (loss) in the period in
which they arise,

Investments for which market quotations are readiy availableare valued at the last reported sales price on their princpal exchange, o
official ciosing price for certain markets, and are classified as Level L securities under IFRS 7 Falr Value Meosurements and Dischosines

{IFRS 7). [¥no sales are reported, a5in the case of some securities that are raded OTC, 2 sacusity S valued at its last repormed bid prive and
is generally catégorized as a Lavel 2 security,

Market quotations ane not considered to be readily available for certain debs obligations (including short-term inveatments with remaining
sraturities of 60 days orless) 3nd otherinvestments; such investrnents are valued on the basis of vatuations lemished by an independent
oricing service approved by the Manager or dealers selected by the Managen, Such services or deslers determine valuations for normal
Institutional-size trading units of such securities using methods based on market transactions for comparable securities and variaus rela-
tionships, generally recognized by institutional traders, between securities [which consider such factoss 25 security prices, yields, matur-
ities and ratings). Thesp socuries will generally be categorized as Level 2. Certain securities may he valued on the basis of a price provided
bry & single source. Securities guoted in fereign currencies, if any, are translated into U5, Dellars 2t the current exchange rate.

The quoted marke: prices used for fnancial 2ssets held by the Master Fund are the cument bid price; the approgiriate quoted market price
used for the financial liabilities is the current asking price, however quoted markist prices for both financial assats and financial Rabilities
held many fall within the bid/ask spread.

Ta the extent  pricing service or dealer is unable tovalue a seeudity of provides a valization that the Manager does not believe acou-
rately reflects the security’s fair value, the security will be valued atfair value by the Manager in acoordance with policies and procedures
appreved by the Manager. Certain imvestments, including certain restricted and illiquid securities and derivatives, are also valued at fair
value following procedures approved by the Manager. These valuations consider such factors a5 significent market o specilic security
awvents such as interest rate or credit quality changes, various relationships with other securities, discount rates, U.5. Treasury, LLS. swap
and credityields, indexlevels, comvesity exposures, recovery rates, sales and other multiples and resale restrictions. These securities are
classified as Level 2 oras Level 3 depending on the priarity of the significant inputs.

Imvestments in collective orother Irvestment funds are velued with reference to thelr respective net assetvalue per it on the relevant
waluation date.

Farthe years ended April 30, 2021 and April 30, 2020, no securities or darvatives wine fair valued by the Manager,
(b} Off-setting financial Instruments

Finzncizl sssets and fiabilities are offset and the net amaunt is reported in the Staternents of financial position when thene i5 3 legally enforceabla
right 1o off-set the recognized amounts and there i an intention to setthe on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the lizbility simultznecusly.
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(e} Income from financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profitor loss

Interest s recognised on a time-proportionate basis using the effective intenest methad. Interest income includes interest from cash and cash
equivalents. Interest from financlzl assets st fairvalue through orofit of loss includes interest from debt securities. Income recefved from callective
ar ather investrrent funds is recorded on the ex-date and retain the character of income as earned by the underlying imestment. All premiums/
discounts are amartized/zccreed an ayield-to-maturity basis. The Master Fund earaed cartain fees in connection with its senior loan purchasing
activities. These fees ane reatad as market discount and are amortized into incame in the Statements of comprehensive income floes).

{d} Distrisution policy

Distributions to the unithiolders from operating profit/loss) of the Master Fund will be distributed to unitholders of the Feeder Fund, sebject to the
epprovel of the Marager. tncome distributions, if any, will be made manthly. Distrbutions to unithalders of the Feeder Fund are recognized s @
Finence cost in the Statements of comprehansive income (loss). Distributions from capital gains, if any, 2re recorded on the ex-dividend date-and
paid at least anmaelly.

[e} Cazh and cash equivalents

Cash comprises current depodits with Denks, Including forelgn curmencies, Cash equivalents are short-term highty liqubd imsestments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash, aresubject to an insignificant risk of chaniges in value, and are heid forthe purpose of meeting
shart-term cash needs rather than far investrents or gther purposes. Sank overdralts, if any, are shown 25 payable to custodian i the
Staternents af financial position.

April 30

Cash and cash equivalents 021 020
Farsign cash 5241311 51055
USDeash GITALY 140,083
Cashequbalents 9539552 217113762
Total cash and cash equivalents 510,568,210 527,514,510

{f} Repurchase agreements

The Master Fund, through ts custodian, recaives dalivery of the underlying securities, the fairvalue of which at the time of purchase is required to
be in a0 amount at least equal to the resale price, including accrued interest. Coltateral for certain tri-party repurchase agreements, which tataled
$41,616,000 {2020: §57,41 3,760} at the end of the reparting periad, is held at the counterparty’s custodian in 2 segregated account for the benefit
of the Master Fund and the counterparty, The Manager is responsible for determining that the vahie of these underlying securities ks at all times at
lesst equal to the resale price, including accrued intesest, In the event of default or bankruptcy by the other party to the agreement, retention of
the coliateral may be sublect 10 legal proceedings.

(g} Stripped securities

The Master Fund may invest in strigped securities which represent a pasticipation In securities that may be structured in classes with rights to
rpcive different partions of the intanest and princips], Intersst-only securities receive all of the interest and principal-only securities recehe ali of
the principal. if the interest-only securities experience greater than anticipated prepayments of principal, the Mastes Fund may fall to recoup fully
iks initial imvestrnent In these securities, Conversely, principal-only securities increase invalue f prepayments are greater than anticipated and
decling ¥ prepayments are shower than anticipated., The fairvalue of these secucities is highly sensitive to changes ininterest rates,

(k) Foreign currency translation

(i} Functional and Presentation Currency

The accounting recards of the Master Fund and Feeder Fund are maintained in 1.5, Dollars, the cursency in which they receive subserip-
tions 2nd Facilitats redemgptions of their redeemable units. The Manager considers the .S, dollar the currency that mast faithfully
represents the econamic effect of the undeslying transactions, events and conditions, The U.S. dallar is the curmency in which the funds
rneasues their performance and repost their resusts. This determination also congiders the competitive environments in which the funds
arecompared to other investment procucts. The financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars.

(i} Transactions and Balznces

Forelgn currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevalling 2t the dates of the trans-
actions. Thee cost of each security s determined using historieal exchenge rates. Income, xpenses and withholding taxes are translated
at prevailing exchange rates when eamed of incurred, The Master Fund does not isolate that portion of realized or unrealized gains or
losses resulting from changes In the forelgn exchange rate on investments from fluctuations arising from changes ia the market prices
of the securities. Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from translation and foreign exchange gains and losses relating to cash and
cash equivalents are presented in the Staterments of comprehensive incomie (loss) as Net realized and change in unrealized gain/Tlass) of
assats and liabilides in foreign curmencies, Translation differences on forward curmency contrecis and non-menetary financial assets and
liabflittes such a5 equities 2t Firvalue through profit and loss are recognized in the Staterments of comprehensive income (loss] as Nat
realized and change In unnealized gain/loss) on fmancial assets and financiz| liabilities at fairvalue through profit o loss. Investmentsin
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foreign securities rwelve certain risks, including those related to economic instability, unfavorable political developments, and currency
fuctetions, not present with domestic investments.

(i) TBA commitmaents

The Master Fund may enter into THA to be announced] commitments to purchase sacurities for a fed undt price ot future daie beyond
custoimnany settlement ime. Although the unit price and par amaunt have boen established, the actual securities have not been specified.
Howeever, it I enticipated that the amaurnt of the cornmitments will not significantly differ from the principal amount. The Master Furd holds, and
rrainteing unt settlement date, cash or high-grade debt abfigatians in an amount sufficient to meet the purchasa price, ar the Masser Fund may
enter ina offsetting contracts for the forward sale of cther securities it owns. Incame on the securities will not be sarned until settlement date.

The Master Fund may also ertesints TEA sale commitments to hedge its portfalio pasitions, to sell mortgage-backed securites it owns under
delayed delivery arrargements or i take 2 short pesition in mortgage-backed securities, Proceeds of TBA sale commitrments are not received
untl the contractuz| settlement date. Duding the time 2 TBAsale commitrent s outstanding, elther equivalent deliverable sseurities or an offset-
ting TR purchase commitment deliverzble on or before the sale commitment date are held as “cover™ for the transaction, or other Bquid assetsin
an amount equal to the notional valie of the TAA sals commitment are segregeted, f the TBA sale commitmént is closed through the acquisition
of 2n offsetting TEA purchase commitment, the Master Fund realizes a gain of koss. if the Master Fund dedhwers securities under the commitment,
the Mastes Fund realizes a gain o 2 loss from the sale of the securities based upon the uniz price established atthe date thie commitment was
entered into.

THEA commitrnants, which afe accounted for a5 purchase and sale transactions, may bé considered securities themsehes, and inmvohe a risk of lass.
due ta changes in the value of the security prios 1othe setthentent date as well as the risk that the counterparty to the transaction witl not perform
its obligations, Counterparty fisk is mitigated by having a master agreement between the Master Fund and the counterparty.

Unsettfed TEA commitrrents are valued at thelr fairvalue acoonding to the procedures descoribed under “Measurernent” above, The contractis
rrvarked to market dadly and the change in fairvalue ks recorded by the Master Fund gs an unrealized gain or loss, Based on market circumstances,
the Manager will determine whether to tzke delivery of the undedying securities o7 1o dispose of the TBA commitments prior to settlement.

4. DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

Darvative contracts may sarve as a campanent of the Master Fund's imsestment strategy and ane utilized primarily ta struciune and economically
hedpe investments to enhance performance and reduce risk to the funds, or for other imvestment purposes. The Master Fund does not designate
amy derivatives as hedges for hedge accounting purposes as described under IFRS B and henoe these dérvative inandal instruments are classi-
fied 2t fairvalue theough profitor loss. The derivative contracts that the Master Fund may hold or issue indhude, but are not limited to, forards,
futures, options, certain currency transactions and swap contracts.

The Master Fund may enter inta options contracts, Losses may arise from changes in the value of the underlying instruments f there is an illiquid
sacondary market for the contracts, if interest or exchanpe rates move unexpectedly or if the counterparty to the contract Is unable to perform. If
awrittan call option isexercised, the premium originatly received Is reconded as an addition to sales proceeds. if 2 wiitten put option is exercised,
the premium originally recaived is recorded as a reduction to the cost of imvestments, Exchange-traded options arevalued atthe [astsale price
of, if o s2les are reported, the last bid price for purchased options and the last ask price forwritten options. OTC traded options are valued using
prices supplied by dealers. Options on-Swaps are sirilar 1o options on securities except that the premium pald or received isto buy ar grant the
right to enter inte 2 previously 2greed upon interest rate or credit defauit contract. Forward premium swap option contracts include premiums
that have extended settiement dates. The delayed setilement of the premiums is factored inta the daily valuation of the option contracts. In

thie case of interest rate cap and fioor contracts, in return for a premium, ongoing payments becwesn two parties are based on interest rates
exceeding a specified rate, in the case of a cap contract, or faling below a specified rate in the caseof 2 floor contract.

Thie Master fund rmay enter into futures contracts, Losses may anise from changes in the value of the underlying instruments, if thena is an illiguid
secondary market for the contracts, ifinterest or exchange rates move unexpectediy or if the countersarty 1o the contract &= unable 1o perform.
With futwres, thereis ménimal counterparty credit risk to the funds since futures are sachange traded and the exchange’s dearinghouse, 25 coun-
terparty to all exchange traded futures, puarantees the futures against default. Risks may exceed amounts recognized on the Statements of finan-
cial position. When the contract is closed, the Master Fund recorgs 2 realized gain or [oss equal to the differance between the valug of the contract
at the time it was opened and the value at the fime it was dlesed. Futures conteacts anevalued at the guated daily settdemint prices establishad
by the exchange on which they trade. The Master Fund and the broker agree to exchange an amount af cash equal to the daity fluctuation in the
value of the futures contract, Such receipts or payments are known as *variatdon margin

The Master Fund may buy and sell forward cusmency contracts, which are agresments betwesn hwo parties to buy and sell currencies ata set
prrice on a future date. The U.S. dolar value of forward currency contracts i determined wsing current fonward currency exchange rates supplied
by a quotation service, The fairvaiue of the contract will fluctugte with changes in currency exchangs rates. The contract is mared to market
dally ang the change in fairvalue 5 recorded 25 an unrealized gain orloss. The Master Fund records 2 realized gain or loss equal to the difference
between the value of the contract at the time it was opened and thevalue at the time it was closed when the confract matures or by defivery of
the currency. The funds could be exposed ta risk if thevalue of the currency changes unfavorably, if the counterparties to the contracts aré unable
ta meet the terms of their coniracts or ifthe Master Fund is unable to enterinto a dosing position. Risks may exceed amounts recognized on the
Statements of financial position.
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The Master FLnd may enter inte OTC and/or centralty cleaned intenest rate swap contracts, which are amrangements between two parties to
exchange cesh fows based on 2 notional principel emount. An OTC and centrally cleared interest rate swap can be purchased of sald with an
upfront premizm. For O7C intenest rate swap contracts, an upfront payment receied by the Master Fund is recorded as aliability on the Master
Fund's books. An upfrent payment made by the Master Fund Is recorded as an asset on the Master Fund's bocks. OTC and centrally clearad
Interest rate swap contracts s marked to market daily based upon guatations from an independent pricing service or market makers. Any
change is recorded asan unrealized gain or loss on OTC interest rate swaps, Daily fuctuationsin the valus of centraliy cleared interest rate Swaps
are settled threwgh 2 central clearing agent and are ganerally recorded invariation margin on the Statements of fnancial pesition and recorded
a5 unrealized gain or less. Payments, including upfront premiums, received or made are recanded 25 realized gains or losses at the reset date or
the closing of the cantract. Certain OTC and centraliy cleared interest rete swap contracts may include axtended efiective dates. Payrments ralated
tothese swap contracts ane accrued based on the terms of the contract. The funds could be exposed to credit or market risk due to unfavorable
changesin the fluctuation of interest rates or if the counterparty defaults, in the case of OTC interest rate contracts, o the central clearing agency
o a clearing mermber defaults, in'the casa of cantrally clearad interest rate swap conlracts, on its respective obligaticn to perform under the
contract, The funds” maimurn risk of loss from coentsrparty sk or central clearing risk is the fzir value of the contract. This risk may be mitigated
far OTC infarest rate swap contracts by having & master netting arrangement between the Master Fund and the counterparty and for centrally
cleared interest rate swap contracts through the dafly exchange of variation margin, There is minimal countarparty risk with respect to centrally
clearad ixterest rats svwap contracts due to the clearinghouse guzrantes fund and other resources that are avallable in the event of a clearing
member default, Risk of loss may exceed amounts recognized on the Statements of financial position.

The Master Fund may enter inta OTC and/or centraly cieared total retusm swap contracts, which are arrangements to exchange a market-linked
reture for 2 periedic payment, both based on a notional principel amount. To the extent that the total return of the secufity, index or ather finan-
cial measure underlying the transaction exceeds or falis shostof the ofisetting Interest rate obligatios, the Master Fund will recelve a payment
frorm or make 2 paymens o the counterparty. OTC and/for centrally dleared total return swap contracts are marked to market dally based Upon
quatations from an independens pricing service or market makers, Any change is recorded as an unreafized gain or loss on OTC total return Swaps.
Diaily fluctuations in the value of centrally cdeared total return swaps are settled through a central clearing agent and are generally recorded i
variation margin on the Statements of financial position and recorded as unrealized gain o loss. Payments received of made are recorded as
realized gains or losses, Certain OTC andfor centrally cheared totel retumn swap contracts may include extended effective dates. Paymants related
te thoss twap contracts are Bocryed based on the terms of the contract. The funds could be exposed to credit or market risk due 1o unfavorable
changes in the fluctuation of interest rates or In the price of the underiying security or index, the possibility that there Ts no liguid rmarket for these
agreements or that the counterparty may default an its obfigation to perform. The funds’ maximum risk of lass from couniterpasty risk or central
clearing risk i the fairvalue of the contract. This risk may be mitigated for OTC total return swap contracts oy having 2 miaster netting arrange-
ment between the Master Fund and the courterparty and for centrally clearsd total return swap contracts through the dafly exchange of variatien
srargin. There is minimal counterparty risk with respect to centrally cleared total return swap contracts due to the dearinghouse guarantee fund
and other resournces that are available in the svent of a clearing member default. Risk of loss may exceed ameounts recognized on the Statements
af financial position.

The Master Fund may enter Into OTC andfor cantrally eleared credit default contracts. In OTC and centrally cleared credit default contracts, the
protection buyer typlcaly makes a peripdic stream of payments to 2 counterparty, the protection seller, in exchange for the right ta receive a
contingent payment upon thi occurrence of a creditevent on the referance abligation or all other egually ranked abligations of the reference
entity, Credit events are contract specific but may include Dankruptey, failure to pay, restructuring and ohligation acceleration. For OTC credit
default comiracts, an upfront payment received by the Mastar Fund is recarded s o Babllity on the Master Fund's books, An upfront payment
made by the Master Fund is recorded 2s an asset on the Master Fund's bogks. Centrally cleared credit default contracts provide the same rights
1o the protection buyer and seller axcept the payments between parties, inciuding upfrant premiums, are settled through a central clearing agent
through variation margin paymenits. Upfront and perlodic payrnents received or paid by the Master Fund for OTC and centralty clearad credic
default contracts are racorded as realized gains of losses at the resst date or close afthe contract, The OTC and centrally cleared credit default
Contracts are marked to market daily based upon quotations fram an independent pricing service or market makers. Any change in value of

OTC credi: default contracts is reconded s an unrealized gain ar loss, Daily fluctuations in thevalue of centrally cleared creditdefault contracts
ara generally reconded invariation margin on the Statements of financial position and recorded a5 unreslized gain or loss. Uipan the occurrence
of 2 credit event, the difference between the oarvalue and fair value of the reference obligation, net of any proportional amount of the upfrant
mayment, isrecorded as & realized gainor loss, In addition to bearing the risk that the cradit event will oocur, the funds could be exposed to market
risk clue to unfavarable changes in interest rates orin the price of the underlying security or index or the possibility that the Master Fund may be
unahie 1o close out its position a7 the same time or at the same price a5 if it had punchased the underying réference obligations. in cerain drcum-
stances, the Master Fund may enter into ofsetting OTC and centrally chearad credit default contracts which would mitigateits risk of loss. Risks
ofioss may exceed amounts recognized on the Statemente of financiz] position, The funds’ maimunm risk oftoss from counterparty risk, eithes
25 the protection saller or as the protection buyer, is the fair value of the contract. This risk may be mitigated for OTC credit defavit contracts by
having 2 master netting arrangement betwesn the Master Fund gnd the counterparty and for cenirally cleared credit default contracts through
the daily exchanige of varistion margin, Counterparsy risk is further mitigated with respect to centrally cleared credit default swap contracts
duets the clearinghotse guarantes fund and other resources that are available in the event of 2 clearing member default. Whenethe Master
Fund is a sefler of protection, the maimun potentil amount of future payments the Master Fund may be required to make is equal 1o the
netional amount.

Income related to Swap contracts is accrued based an the terms of the contrect. Receivables and payables related to closed swap conwracas
are presented in the Finencial assets or Financial liabilities at fair vatue through profit orloss Bne items on the Staternents of Fnancizl pesition,
Reatized and enrealized gains and losses on dervative contracts areincluded in Net realized and change In unrealized gain/{loss] on financial
assets and fnancial liabilities 81 Talr value through peofit ar loss.
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The notional ameunts of ceriain bypes of Ainancial instruments provide a basis for comparisan with instruments recognired on the Statements
offinancial position, but they g0 notnecessasily indicate the amounts of future cash flowsimvohed or the current fairvalue of the instrurments
and do not therefore indicate afund's sxposure to credit or market price risks. The dervative instrurmens become favorable (assets) or unfavor
able (liabifties 2s 2 resuit of fluctuations of market prices or foreign exchange rates relative to theirterms. The aggregate cantractual or netional
amount of dedvative financial instruments an hand, the extent towhich instruments are favorable or unfavorable, and thusthe 2ggregate fair
values of derivative finencial assets and liabilitles can fluctuate significzntly from time ta time,

5. TAXATION

The Master Fund invests in securities issued by entities which are primarily domiciled in countries ather than tha Cayran lsiands. Many of these
foralgn countries have ta Laws that indicate that capital gains taxes may be applicable to non-residents, such asthe funds. Typicaily, these
capital gains texes are requived to be determined on a self-assessment hasis and, therefore, such tawes ray notbe deducted by the Mastar Fund's
Brakers o 3 withholding basis,

in accardancewith IAS 12 — Income Tases, the funds are reguired to recognize s tax liablity when itis probable that the tax laws of forelgn coun-
tries require 2 tax liabdity to be assessed on the funds’ capital gains sourced froem such fareign country, assurming the relevant taxing authaorities
have full knowledge of all the facts and dircumstances. The tax liability is then measured at the amount expected to be paid to the rélevans
taation autharites using the tax [aws and rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the regorting period. There is
sometimes uncertainty aboutwhether or not a tax liability will ultimately be paid by the funds. Therefore, when masuring 3y UnCertain fax
liabilities managament considars alt of the reievart facts and dircumstances available at the time which could influence the likelihocd of payment,
including any formal or informal practices of the relevant tax authorities.

ALApril 30, 2021 2nd April 30, 2020, the funds hed no significant uncertain tax liability pesitions with respectic foreign capital gains tares,

6. UNIT CAPITAL AND REDEEMABLE UNITS

At the end of the reporting periods, April 30, 2021 and April 30, 2020, the Master Fund had Chass 5 and Clags | Units aveilable for issue, Unless the
Manager determines otherwise, the minirmurm initial imvestment for Class % i5 300 Uinits and the minfmum subsequent subscription shall be 10
Units, provided that the absolute minimum initial investments shall be USS50,000 or its equivalent in the relevant subscription currency. Unless
the Managet detarmines otherwise, the minimum number of Class | Unitsthat can be subscribied for by way of initial investment shal be 1,000,000
Units, the minimem aggregate value of the initial investment shall be US510,000,000 and the minimu rumber of Units that can be subscribed for
by way of subsaguent investment shall be 10,000 Units. The absolute minimum aggregete value pfthe inftial imvestment in Class 1 Units that the
Manager may dezermine shall be US550,000.

TheFesder Fund has unlimited Units of cagital. Each Uniswill represent an undivided beneficial interest in the Feeder Fund, MaplesFS Limited
fthe *Feader Fund Trustee”], at the direction of the Manager, shall have the power to designate and issue Units from time to tima by reference 103
geparate Class and/or series znd detesmine the mannes inwhich Units of any Class andjor serias differ from Units of any other Ciass and/or series,
The Feeder Fund currently hias two Classes of Units, Class Jand Class M Units, which ane investors into Class S of the Master Fund. Class M Units
arescld with a masimum Front-end sales charge of 3.25% and do not pay a contingent deferred sales charge (COSC) Class J Units do not pay a
front-end sales charge and are subject to 2 CI5C of up to 4.005% if those Units 2ré redeemed within fiveyears of purchase. Unless the Manager
determines othenwise, the misimorn inital investment for Class ) (C0SC) and Class M Units shall be 300 Units and the minimym subsaquent.
subscriptionsshal be 10 Units.

The net asset velue of each class is calculzted by dividing the net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable units of a particular ciass of
usits, with the total number of utstanding receematle units of that elass. In sccordance with the provisions of the funds” goveming documents,
investment positions 2re valued based on the bid/ask market price for the purpose of determining the net assetvalue per unit fior subseriptions
2nd redemations. Proceeds and payments for redeemable participating units issued and redeemed are shovn as mevementsin the Statements
af changes in netassets attributable to holders of redeemable participating units. The Feecer Fund generally provides s unitholders with the
right to redeem their interest in the Feeder Fund at any dealing date [ganeralty daily} for cash equal ko the propartionate share of the netasset
walue of the Feeder Fund, The Manages, the Transfer Agent o other delegate of the Manager reserves the rfight to reject any applicatian for Units
without stating any rezson for doing so. The Feeder Fund issues redeemable units, which are redeemable atthe helder's option and are classified
as financial liahiities, The redeernabie units are casvied at the redemption amount that Is payable at the end of the reporting period, if the holder
exercises the right 10 put the unit back to the funds.
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Unit transactions for the yearswere as follows

Mazter Fund Class 5 Class1
April 30 April 30
fieri ] 2020 021 2020
Units cutstanding 2t beginning of year 57,921,525 55053237 1085 1,085
Uits Ssswed PN il ] 5,373,805 = -
Lnits redeemed {a.592164 {£,505,517) - -
Units autstanding at and of year 57,044,650 57,921,525 1,085 1,065
Feeder Fund ClassJ Clazz M
April 38 April 30
2021 1020 2021 020
Unitsoutstanding a2 beginning of year 54,780,505 BOCATAI0 18,926,710 10635420
Units issued - . R ] 9530380
Units redeemed {5,530,480) (5,255 595 (3,587 654] {1,042,650)
Units outstanding at end of year 49,241,045 54,751,525 24,493,271 13,926,710

At April 30, 2021, 1009 of the Feeder Fund's Class J redeernable units were held by cne unaffiiated investor {2020: 1009). At April 30, 2021 100%
cfthe Feeder Fund's Class M redeemable units were held by one unaffitiated imestor (2020; 10096). At Apil 30, 202L, 100%of the Master Fund's
Class 5 redeamabile units wens held by the Feeder Fund (2020: 100%5), AL April 30, 2021, 100% of the Master Fund's Class | redeemable usits wers
held by an 2ffiliate of the Manager (2020: 1005,

7. DISTRIBUTIONS

Distributions to the unitholders are made at the discretion of the Manager in an amewnt and at such time as determined to be sppropriate. Atthe
end of the reparting period, dividends pald by the Master Fund Class S amounted to $17,222,140 07 $0.2985 per unit (2020: $22,975.132 or 50,4031
pesunith At the end of the reporting period, there were no dividends pald to Class | [2020: SN,

A2 the end of the reporting period, dividends paid by the Feeder Fund Class J and Class M amounted to 511,573,118 or 0222 per unit (2030

517.944,018 0 50.312 per unit) and $5,503,930 or $0.258 per unit (2020: 54,934,176 or $0.348 per unit), respectively, Distributions from the Feeder
Fund are recognized in the Statements of comprenensive income (loss) 35 a finance oost.

8. RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The funde have invessrent guidelines that set out their averal] business stranegies, their tolerance for risk and their general risk management
philosophy. The funds’ financial assets and liabilities at fairvalue comprise the Master Fund's financialinstruments which may incluce

+  Investments including fied-income securities, fioating rate securitfes and equity securities;
+  Bongs that are securitized debt instrurments and other obligations of companies and governments woricwide;
« Cash gnd short-term investments; and

- Derivative transactions which the Master Fund enters into to manage the interest rate and currency risks arising from the Master Fund's
mwestment activites.

{a) Market price risk

Whileit is the intestion of the Manager to implement strategies which ane designed to minimize potential losses, there can be no assurance that
these strategies will be successful. Itis possibla that an Investar may lose # substantial proporticr or 2il ofits investenent. As 2 resuit, sach irvestor
should carefully consider whether itcan afford to bear the risk of investing in the funds.

The funds.are exposed to market risk [which ineludes markat price risk, foreign currency risk, interest rate risk), Bquidity risk and credit or default
risk. The funds’ risk managemnent process consists of a multi-layered and cross functional review that provides a system of checks and balances.
The Manager performs periodic reviews and agrees on policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarized below. These pelices
have remained substantialy unchangad s$nce the beginning of the period towhich these financial staternents relate.

Maskat rigk arises mainly from encertainty about futura prices of fingncisl instruments held, It represents the potential loss the funds might suffer
through hatding market pesitions in the face of price movements caused by factors specific to the individual investment or factors affecting all
instrurments traded inthe marke:. The Manager considers the asset aflocation of the funds in osder to minimize the risk assotiated with particular
countries orindustry sectors while continuing to follow the funds' Investment objective through a canelid selection of securities and ether finan-
cial instrurnents within specified limits, Marlket fsk can also potantially be mitigated through derivative contracts entered into by the funds. The
Manzger measures both the Master Fund's total risk as well a5 their risk of underperformance versus their stated benchmark.
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Under rigemal rarket conditions, the Manager expects to invest 15%%-65% of the Master Fund's net assetsIn each of these three sectors:
LS. 2rd investment-grade sector - U5, government sacurities and Invesiment-grade bends of U.S. companies, Htg_h yleld sector —lowerrated
bonds of L5, comparses, and Intermational sector - bonds of fareign governments and companies, including both investrnent grade and

lerwer-rated seourities.

A2 the end of the reporting peried, investrments in U5, securities wene approximately 88% (2020: approximately 134,
i the end of the reparting periods, the funds' notional exposure on derivative contracts was as follows:

Purchased insprest rate TEA comeritrrient ootion contracts [Contract amont)
Purchased cuirendy opton casitracts fontact amount)

Purchased Intenest mte swap option contracts [oonirae amaunt)

Wiitten Inbenest rate TEA commitment option contrcts (oontmct amount)
Writhen cumency oplion contradts. foontract amount}

Wittan intenest rate swap option contracts (contract amount)

Fushures contracts [rmember of eontracts) =

Forand comency conltratts ontrast ameunt *
Caritrally clianed intensr ate swap contracts [netional)

OTC total return suap contradts (Rotiansl)

Centrally dieared total retum swap coniracs {notional)

OTE cradit default contracts - protection purchased (notional)

OTC credit default coniracs - protectan sobd (notional;

Aprid 30
2021 el ]
$105,000,000 $237,000,000
3 §74007.245
$1094253,085 $1297 422848
$105,000,000 $265,000,000
. $48,904,547
812292544 706,996,055
1553 1278
5545065404 $400,370,47)
§1,598,572,000 §1,947,958,535
$42453553 §56,635,501
§364283,925 $260,135,439
§38.754916 $38,513,000
$127.372.500 §115,552,000

* For the rporting period, tiv Master Fund's notional exposure as @ pereent of net assetswasas follows: Burc sells: 17.78%, Japanese Yen buys: 12,9336 (020:
Eure selis: 115755, There 378 ia othir cancentrations to currency rigk in ocirss of 109 of net assets as.a result of fosward dermetive notionais.
“ For the reparting peried, the Master Fund held Euro-Bund and U.S, Treasury sesurities with aumber of contracts totaling 1,553 and nutional amounis totaing
§295, 527,747 20200 U5, Treasury secusities with number of contracts totaling 1,375 and notions amounts otaling 5267134407}

Thevelumeof activity for the reparting pérlods for any derivative type that was held during the period islisted below and was as follows besed on

an average of the holdings at the end of sach fiscal quarter:

Purchased TBA commiltment option contracts {contract amaund
Purchased cusmency option contzacts foontsact amourtd]
Purchased swap opibon contracs oantract ameunt]
‘Wirltten TEA commitment option contracts [comract amount)
Wikt curency Spbion Sentracts (Contracs amound)

Witkian swap Gption Contracts fContiae amount

Fuitunes eontracts [aumber of contracts) **

Forward currency tontracss {oontract amound

OTE invtieest eyte Swan cantracts {notional)

Centralty deared interest fté swap COMracts (notonall
OTC notal rebum swap conirss {notionad

Centrally clearad totai returm swap contracts. [notionad)

07T eredin defauit contracts (notional

Centrally cleared oredit default contracts (notional]
Warranis [number of waranzs)

April30
2031 2020
$155,100,000 5136,700,000
96,006,000 £75,700,000
S17E5,200,000 41,098 500,000
S177,100,000 £153.200,000
SET,T00.000 65,000,000
SA52,800,000 STHLED0000
1,000 L0
046,500,000 S251.500,000
] 51,200,000
13T, 100,000 $1.515.400,000
£39,106,000 555 500,000
£315400,000 S158,T00,000
5162,700,000 £143,500,000
- H8,600,000

* Foor the réparting period thens were na haldings a1 theend of each fiscal guarter and thetransactions wene considened minimal.
** Far the reporting period, average of the Futures Soldings 21 notional values was $276,000,000 (2020 5530, 500,000
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Aggregate Value at risk

TheValue at Risk (VaR) risk measure estimates the maximum expected koss in pre-taxation profit over 2 given holding period for & specified confi-
dence level. The Vad methodology s 2 statistically defined, probability-based appraach that takes into account market volatilies as well as risk
diversifization by recognizing ofsetting positions and correlations benween products and markets. Risks can be measuned consistently 2oross
all markets and products, and risk measures can be aggregated to arrive 2t a single risk number. Glven the interdependenties betwean market
variables, the Master Fund slse estimates the YaR or threshald foss thatis not expected to beexreeded at the #ith percentile confidence kevel
overa 1-day horizon, The Manager uses a propeetany multiHactor model to estimate the active risk falso referred to-as tracking erod fromoedich
VaR estirnates can be 3nalytically derived. The vaR estimates presented below ane pointin-time and vany over time as a function of market and
partfalio composition changes and are representative of activity during the pesiod.

iven its reliance on historical data, VaR is most effective in estimating risk exposures in markets ia which there are no sudden fundamental
changes or sudden shifts in market conditions. An inherent limitation ofVakt s that the distrizution ef past changesin rarket risk factors may
ot prodisce sccurate pradictions of future risk, Different VaR methodologies and distributional assumptions coutd produce @ materially different
Vak, Moreover, VaR calculated for a ane-day Sime harizon does nat fully caplure the market risk of positions that eannct be Hquidaed or offset
with hedges within one day, Changas in VaR betiween reporting periods are generally due to changes in levels of exposure, volatilities andfor
cornelations among asset classes.

The table below shows the VaR of the Master Fund for beth start and end of the review period.

Partfolic Benchmark® * Ratia™
April 30, 2021 LA nfs rfa
April 30, 2030 il r] nfa afa

* ICE Biodh LS. Treasury Bill index
“* Thie Master Fund uses & cash equivalent benchmark, therefone VaR of the benchmark and VeR ritio are not relevant.

The factar risk breakdzwn for the Master Fund for both start and end of the review period is prasanted in the table below. Tha risk decompasition
is based on expecied annualized volatility {1 standard deviation]. Active Risk [or Estimated Tracking Error “TE") measures the predicted stan-
dard deviation of the return difference between the portiaiio and the banchmark using the current positions of each and the risk model's factar
covariznce matrix.

Portiolio Benchmark® Estimated TE
April 30, 2021 Tatal Risk B4 o0 585
Apertl 30, 2020 Total Risk ] il 631
* BCE Bofa, ULS. Treasury Bif Index
[B) Currency risk

Currency risk is the rigk that the fairvalue or future cash flows of a financial instrument will uctuete due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The
risk arises on financial instrurments that are denominated In a cufrency other than the functional currency in which they are measured, Aportion
ofthe tunds’ assets.ane held in currencies other than the base curmency with the result that the funds' Statements of inandal position can be
signdficantly affected by currency movements.

Mon-base currency expasures (excluding the notional impact of forwarnd currency contracts) are detailed in the tables below. Monetary assets
represent investrents that can be converted into monstary terms in 3 very short period of time. In the tables below, Non-Monetary assets include

the fzirvaiie of the Master Fund’s portfolio investments. Monetary assetsand labilities include the unrealized appreciation and depreciation of
THAsale commitments and derivative contracts. Forward currency contracts are entered into a5 @ method of reducing currency risk,

Foreign Currency Risk atthe end of the reporting period April 30, 2021

Assets Hon-Monetary Monetary Total
Justralian Dollas §= 5591 657 S5 BET
British Pound - 1355512 1856502
Canadian Collar - Skesn 524,502
Eurn 3,570,485 £,152.705 10,662,152
Hang Marg Dellar = a2 50,312
JapaneseYen - 558,043 ESE043
New Jealand Doliar - 29533 25533
Korwegian Krone - 004 185,004
Swedish Krona - 13723 73723
Swiss Franc = B2 556 62,559

53,529,486 $12,703,391 $16, 237,877
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Liablities Hon-Monetary Monetary Total
Austratizn Dollar S S35, 0ed 5Ea0.054
British Pound - LRG3 g 155695
Canadian Dollar - 404,316 404,316
Eura - 12,556,845 12 356,845
JapaneseYen - 1,369,438 1,339,435
Mew Zealand Doliar o5 E4B.5TE 548,578
Horaegean Rrone - L 31,544
Swadish Hrons - 14T 15T 147197
Susss Franc. - 78,545 TE.645

$= 16,990,304 $16,990,304
Currency Non-Monetary Manetary Total
British Pound = 5504 55058
Canadian Dolar = 6 [
Crech Koauna — a7 47
Eua = P 240754

f= 5241311 241,311

Foreign Currency Risk at the and of the reporting periad April 30, 2020

Assrts Hon-Monetary Monetary Total
Agentine Pesa S16T314 i— SIET.316
Australian Datlar 93,332 683,555 786,218
British Poynd 131 3,690,474 356355
Canadian Collar - AT AT 1447337
Chrinese Yuzn {Dffshore) - 40,933 40,933
Crech Momuna - 2LTIT HLTIT
Eurg 15712 5,708, BOT LL665515
Fieng Kang Dallar - 1504 1504
JapanpsaYan - 459,819 435,813
Bew Teiwen Dofler - 58 5
Mew Zealand Dollar - 147118 LMTLY
Morwegian Krame - 883507 833,507
Russien Auble - 228,307 228,307
Singapore Doilar - TLA84 71584
Swedish Krona - 1,526,736 LE2ET3E
Swias Franc - 16,616 16,616

§2,409,B65 $20,217,515 §22,677,383
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Liabilities Mon-Manetary Monetary Total
Fusstraliapn Dollac = wIeTR 808,753
British Paund - LT45 55 2,745,654
Canadhian Dollar - |0 530,272
Chirese Yuan (Ofshone) - 532 B SEL
Crech Horuna - T534TE 53475
Eunr - 11970865 11970568
Hong Kong Dofar - 307 31,0m9
Japanese Yen — 220,368 520,368
e Taiwean Dotiar - 54,580 E4.880
Hitwy Zealand Dollar = 173,15 173,155
Norwegian Krone - 3564273 3,554,173
Russian Ruble - 284,886 265,85
Swedish Krona - 4 T3
Swizs Frans - 31581 237,581

§— $21,B88,262 521,888,262
Currency Non-Monatary Monetary Total
Argerdine Pess 3~ 5 56
British Found - 354 354
Canadian Dollar - 5 5
Chéechi Kofuna - 41 41
Eure - 659 659

5— 51,065 $1,085

{) Interest rate risk

interest rate riskis defined as the risk that the fais value or futune cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates, The risk 2rises or financial instruments whose fairvalue or future cash flows are affected by changes in interest rates. Short-term
Saclrities 2re less sensitive to interest rate changes than longer-term securities, bat they alsa usually offer lower yields. A porticn of the Master
Eund's financia! assets and liabities are debt instruments with Tlaating interest rates, which, i the Manager's opinion, are penerally less sensitive
to interest raze changes but may decline invalue if their interast rates do not rise as much, or 25 quickly as interest rates in general. Comversely,
floating rate instruments will not generaliy increase in value If interest rates dechine, Chenges ininterest rateswill alss affect the 2mount ofintersst
income the Master Fund earms anits fioating rate investments.

High yield securities risk

The Master Eund invests in fled income sacurities rated Baa3 orlower by Moody's or BBB- ar lower by S&P lcommanly krown as “junk” o *high
yield" bonds). These securities are considered speculative and, while generally providing greater income than investment in higher-rated secu-
rities, invoive greater risk of principal and income (including the possibility of defaultor bankrupicy of the ssuwers of such securities) and may
invalve greater volatifity of price fespecially during perods of economic uncertainty or change] thar securiies in the higher rating categories.
Because yieldsvary ower tire, no specific level of income can ever be assured, These ower-rated, high yislding fixed income secusities generally
tend to reflectecancmic changes (and the cutlook foreconomic growthl, short-term corporate and industry developments and the market's
perception of their credit quatity fespecialy during tirmes of sdverse publicity) to 3 greater extent then higherrated securities which react primarily
1o Fuctuztions in the gensral level of interest rates (plthough these lower rated fied income securities 2re also afected by changes.in interast
rates). In the pest, economic downturns or an increase in interest rates have, under certain circumstances, caused 2 higher incidence of default by
the issuers of these securities and may do 50 in the future, especially in the case of highly leveraged issuers.

Payment risk

The issuers of dabt securities held by the Master Fund may be able to call a bond or prepay principal due on the seourities, particularly during
periods of dedlining Interest rates. The Master Funid may not be able to refvest that principal at attractive rates, reducing income to the Master
Fund, and the Master Fund may lose any premium paid. The Master Fund would also lose the benefit of falling interest rates on prica of the prepaid
bond, On the ather hand, rising interest rates may cause prepayments to otour 8t siower than expected rates. This effectively lengthens the
mabirities of the affected securities, maldng therm mofe serditive to interest rate changes and the Master Fund's net asset value mare volatie,
Securities subject 1o prepeyment risk generally offer less potential for gains when interest rates decling, and may effer greater patential for loss
whien interest rates rise.
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The tables below present the interest rate profile of the Statementsof financia! position categorized by maturizy dates. (April 30, 2001 table values
danot nclude Common Stocks fair valee of $221)

Interest Rate Risk Agril 30, 2021
Lzt than Ower MNon-interest

1year 1-5years Syears baaring Total
Assats
Cosh and cash equivalents ot e §— i— §868.T18 510,568,210
—— - - - 5494505 408430
muﬂrlnam o - - - 825.51% 815519
Interestand other receivables = - — 4485873 AAB5ATE
Financisl Assess atfairvalue
through profitor loss 118,234,152 E0211.250 EOE, 116,158 1,154,187 856,805,785
Total assets S1IT,5236T4 $80,211,250 4E%E,116, 156 L0 529,115 $996,TE0,195

rchases of investmends

::ra‘ﬁngse:ﬂmm 5 G- 5— £205357,529 $206 957,529
st et - - - 1,448,123 1,445,133
Payalble for vanation margn o0
futisnes contracts 18,857 - - - 15,857
Payabie forveriation margn,
on centrally cleared ywap
CONTACTS 73,582 - - - 73582
Collateral on cestainderivathe
contracts, at value - - TS.000 - 750,000
Payabie for management fiees - - - 547,050 S4T050
Payablefor and
mmmﬂ — - — 1rara: A
Orther aconied expenses - - - 335,790 335,790
Financial Liabdnes at falr value .
through profitor loss 4,117 B5T 14200381 203,574,512 12T RIE 235,413,365
Total ﬂﬂﬂmiﬁﬂ;fn;
net assets attributable to
holders of redeemabbe wnits) 54,210,146 £14,203,351 $204,624,512 £301 686,180 §515,726,183
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Interest Rate Risk April 30,2020
Less than Owver Non-interest

1year 1-5 yoars 5 years bearing Total
Azsets
Cashand cash equivalests S177TAT82 ] G 5141148 427814900
Sales of imeestrnents awvaiting
m‘lgmm. - - - preherk o narazeeo
Subseviptions of units svesiting
sestlement ’ - - - 2535 B35
Recetvabhe forvaration mangin
ancentrally cheared swap
COMtracts 251,152 - - - 251,152
Interest and other receivatles - - 4490638 4,850,538
Financial Aszets pt fairvalue
through prafiterloss 114,108 748 55 426,828 T42 168,188 3,108 749 9I7.902,508
Total assets £142,183 662 S58, 428 524 4742,168,188 £111,966,150 41,064,894 824
Liabilities
Purchases of imvestmentds
awziting setiiement $— e = $360,505, 363 $355. 505583
Redempticns of anitsawadtin
secmiement ¢ ¢ - - - 398707 398,107
Payabie forvariation margin on
futures contracts 80143 - - - BO143
Lollateral on cerSain derhvatie
contracks, atvaloe 5,906,000 L5878 655818 = BRADETT
Payzbie formanagement fees v - = 516,376 516,376
Payable for custody 2nd
admirisratve fees - - - 286,084 66,004
Crther acorynd dxpandes — - - 305D 312080
Financlal Lizhiities at fairvalue
theough peofit o loss T02L7I5 16,180,507 217003305 4730042 R5835078
Total liabilities {excluding
net assets attributable to
helders of redeemable units) 413,027,868 S17,738,266 $218,550,623 5375,748,272 5625,076,025

Mon-base interest rate expasures excluding the noticnal Impact of interest rate swap coatracts) are detailed in the tables above. Interest rate
SiAD CONTrACTS 2 entered into az a method of reducing interest rate rishe

April30
Interest Income 2021 2020
Cash and cash eouivalents 523354 4561543
Dreit securities:
Ax Fair valye through profitorboss ELRIIETT 24,559,551
Total $22,663,T61 £24,900,994

* The Master Fund had no interestincome frar irvestments in affillated issuers for the pedods ending Apl 30, 2021 and 2020

{d]) Liquidity risk

This is the risk that the funds will encounterdifficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities. The main liability of the funds

is the redemption of ary units that imestors wish bo sell; The Master Fund's financial instruments that incli:de investments in OTC cermative
contracts, f any, which are not traded in an organized public market, may be illiquic. As a result, the Master Furd may not be able to promptiy
liguidate some of their investrments in these instruments at an amount close to their falr value in order to meet their liguidity requirements or to
rexpond to specific events such ss deteriaration in the credit warthiness of any particelar issuer,

To minlmize or mitigate the effect of liquidity risk where desmed necessary, the Manager can sitner re-position the portiotio or adjust the
allocation to obtain a higher concentration of more liguid and viable securities as detailad In the investment oblective.

Pursuant to the fund’ investment policy, the Manager is to menitor on 2n ongoing basis the funds” iquidity position. Redeemable units
aréredeemad on demand at the holder's option, However, the Manager does not foresea that the contractual maturity disclosed will be
representative of the actual cash outflows, as holders of these instruments typically retain them for the medium to long-term.
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The t2bles below znalyze the funds’ assets and liabfities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the Statements of

financial position date o the contractusl maturity date. The ameunts in the tables are the eoatractual undiscounted cash fiows. (April 30, 2021
tahia values do not include Commeon Stocks falrvalueof 5231

Liquidity Risk Agril 30,2021
Less than Greater than

1 Manth 1-% Months ZMonths Tatal

Total Assets 5166, 387,682 538,464,576 5T91,927,93T S508,TED,195
Sabliti
Purchases of instrmnents awaiting setthement 163 274,452 HI3.653.037 - 2G5ETSE
Pedermptsans of unis awaiting setilément 1423133 - - 1445133
Peyable for varfation mangin on futures contracts lagar - - 18,837
Payable forvarkation mangin on centraly cleaned swap
COMRTAcTs Ta,52 - - T35
Collateral on cerain desivativg contracts, at vahse - - 750,000 TE0.000
Payable for management fees 547,090 — - S47.000
Fayable for custody and administrative fees iraTee —_ - marez
Other atorued Bpenses 33,790 - = 335,780
Financial Liz%iies arfairvalue through peofitor loss 4568312 3181830 200,153,098 225413365
Total Liakilfties $197,348,098 5107 464,992 §220,913,059 5535,776,149
Liguidity Risk April 30,2020
Less than Greater than

1 Manth 1-3 Months I Months Total
Total Assets §199,262,303 530,474,807 $834,957,724 51,064,604,824
Liablbithes
Furchazes of rvestments awating setthement 388,505,563 — - 368,505,563
Redemptions of urits seaiting settlement 36707 - - 8,707
Payableforvariation margin on futures contracts 50,143 - - 60,043
Cotlgteral on certaln desvashve contracts, st value SEELN0 - 24577 8140,577
Payale for management fees 516,376 - - EI63TE
Fayabiefor custody and administrative fees 266,094 - - 255,094
Other actroed Spenses 22090 - — 302,050
Financial Liabilities at falr vatue througn profit or s 600785 TIRTT4E 237,547,548 245,835,073
Total Labilites $3TT 65,158 7,367,746 $240,062,125 §E25,076,02%

{e) Credit risk

The fundswill be sxposad to a credit fisk an partieswith whom they trade and will also bear the risk of settlement defauit. The risk of default on
securitios traded is considerad minimat as deliwery of securities soid is only made wher the braker has recetvied payment. Payment is made ana
purchase when the securities have been recelved by the braker. The trade waill Fail i either party falls to meet its obligation,

Thee funds seek to mitigate their credit risk by undestaking transactions with broker dealers, banks and regulated axchanges which the Manager
considers of high credit ratings and that it considers 1o be establishiad, Risks associated with derivative contracts, Ifany, invalve the possibdisy that
the counterparty to the contract miny default on its obligation to perform,

Thie fatrvatue of collatera! that has been accepted by the Master Fund related to outstanding repurchase agreements is $41,616,000
LR020; 5574137501

Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman) 3
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The Master Fund generally invests in financial assets which have a credit rating assigned by well-known rating agencies.

Percentage of Het Assets
Rating Rprit 30
031 2020
AhAfAae B6.12% TETTH
Aafha T L7
Afh 1E2 133
DOE Ry a1 11T
BE/Ee 1618 .32
B .84 %52
CLC/Caaand below B2 R
o, 1734 12710
Al Bib4 78
Linrated® Errn B30
100.00% 100.00%

* Inoreer 1o monior the cradit gualizyof the “Unrated” underlying dabl securities, the Maneger, on the bas's of the intema ressarch, preparas Bz own ratings fod
the various instruments for which pubilicly avallabte credit mtings ase not aveatilke, The Manager reviews the key fingncial metrics of the lssue and shnsctural
features of the nstruments in ordes to caleulste the imphed ratings for each of thess Ingtruments. Cach, dennative instruments and net other assets are shown
it the Unrated categady. Payables and recehvibles for TBA martgage comm tments ae inchaded in the Unsated categany and may result in negative weights.
Unratad delt securities have heen atsessiod bythe imastmiert manage: ba have credit quality consistent within B/8 and 000/ Caa and betow rated securifies.

Credit qualities are shown as 3 percentage of the Master Fund's net assets as of April 30, 2021 and 2020, & bond rated Baa or higher (Prime-3
&« higher, for short-term debt) is considersd iniestment grade, This chart reflects *best” ratings betweeen Moody's, Standard & Poar's (54F)
and Fitch, showing ratings based on S&P lettering. TBA mortgage commitments, if any, are included based on theirissuer ratings. Ratings and
portiodio crediz quality will vary over time.

The funds themselves have not been rated by anindependent rating agency.

The credit crisis could have an impact on the Master Fund's remaining securities if ether counterparties are farced to file for bankruptey or are
etherwise unable i perform their obligations. The funds are exposed wocredit risk, which is the risk that 2 counterparty will be unatie to pay
amounzs in full when they fall due

The fiunds are alss exposed to counterparty credit risk on trading derivative products, cash and cash equivalents, and amounts due from brokes
and ather receivabie balances. The funds’ maximum risk of loss from counterparty risk, either as the protection seller or 2s the protection buyer,

is the Fsirvalus of the dérivative contracts. This risk is mitigated, but not eliminated, by having a master netting arrangement between the Master
Fund and the counterparty. Where the Master Fund is a seller of protection, the mesximum potentist amountef future payments the Master Fund

mizy be required ta mzke is equal to the notional amount of the relevant derivative contract,

The Masier Fund Isa party to IS0A (Intemational Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc ) Master Agreernants that govern OTC derivative and
foreign exchange contracts and Master Securities Forward Transaction Agreements that govern transactions innolving mortgage-backed and
other asset-backed securities that may result in delayed delivery [Master Agreements) with certain counterparties entesed into from time totime.
The Master Agreements may contain provisions regarding, among other things, the parties’ general chligations, representations, agreemants,
coligteral requirements, events of default and early termination. With respect to certain counterpasties, in accordance with the terms of the
Master Agreements, collateral posted to the Master Fund is held i 8 segregated account by the funds’ custodian. The Master Fund’s collaterat is
delivered to the counterparty by elther pledging or transferring collateral to the counterparty, Coltateral can b in the farm of cash or debr secu-
fities fesued by the LS. Governmient of releted agencies or other securities as agreed 1o by the Master Fund and the applicable counterparty.
Collateral requirernents are determined based o the Master Fund's net position with each cownterparty. With respect to I3DA Master Agreamants,
termination events appliceble to the Maszer Fund may acoir upen adedinein the Master Fund's net 5sets elow a specified threshold overa
certain period of time. Termination events applicable to counterparties may occur upon a decline In the counterparly's long-term or shortterm
credit ratings below 3 specified level, Ineach case, upon ocourrence, the other party may elect to terminate early and cawse settfernent of all
derivative and foreign exchange contracts outstanding, including the payment af any losses and costs resulting from such early termination, as

determined by the terminating party. Any decision by one or more of the Master Fund's counterparties to elect early tenmination could
Impact the Master Fund’s future derivative activity

Arthe close of the reparting pariod, the Master Fund had 2 net Eability position of 528,325,035 (M020; 517,703,733) on open derivative contracts
subject 1o the Master Agreernents. Collateral posted by the Master Fund at period end for these agreements totaled 530,064,000 (2020:
517,594,545 and may include ameounts related o unsettled agreements.
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Tha Mastér Fund’s main credit risk concentration is spread between debt securities and rding derivative products. Less than mufﬂm fair
value of favorasle contracts cutstanding are with a single issuer, with the exceptian of Uiniform Morigage-Backed Securities, which were valued
24352 136,770 or 4L07% of faic vakue 2t theend of the reporting period April 30, 2021 {2020: Uniform Mortgage-Backed Securities, which were
valued at 418,352,725 or 46.31% of fairvalug).
The funds are exposed to credit risk associated with the Custodian wha halds 2 portion of the funds finencial assets.and U5, cash balances. The
Custedian provides clearing and depositary oparations for the Master Fund's investrent transactions. The Custodian also provides some of the
shart-term lending facilities to the Master Fund, The funds were also exposed to Custodian risk on cash and cash eguivalents that the Custedian
has falled to treat cornectly in accondance with procedures agreed to by the funds,

The maximum exposure to credit risk as of the reporting date can be analyzed as follows at the end of each reporting period:

April 30

Instrument Type 2021 2020
Financial assers and liabilities af fairvalue through profitor iess comprised of:

Fiod inoome imestrments 20,216,763 $B05,168,510
Retpusrehade agreements 40,800,000 55,285,000
Dt ivative 255ets” AL 38T 63,011,766
Lash and cath equivalents 10,588 2140 27,514,510
Sales of investrrients awaiting sextlemant 4,004,508 103,732.960
Subscriptions of units awaiting setthement B25,51% 2588
Interess 2nd atherrecehvables - £AB5 873 4,880,628
Recefvable for variation mangin oncenteally cleared swmp contracts - =15

* Derivitg d35ets 3 comprised of forward contracts, DTC Swap contracts, fonmard premium swap ogtion contreets, purchased options, purchased swap
eptions, wiithn options, &nd weitten swap options. The maxdmur credit risk en wiitien options and written swap optoons is evaluated on a seourity bisis,
based on thevaiue of premiums paid on sach securlty. The maximam credit risk on certain derivative assets is mitigatid a5 2 result of the Master Fund's
erfarceahle master netting arrangement (Hosns 8 snd 1),

Thie Master Fund measures credit risk and expected credit losses using probability of default, expasure 3t default and lass given defaulz.
Managernent considers both histarical analysis and forward looking information in determining any expected creditloss. At April 30, 2021 and
Apri| 30, 2020, all other receivables, amounts due from brokers, cash and short-term deposits 2re held with counterparties with 2 credit rating
of ARfRa or higher and are due to be settled within 1 waek. Management considers the probability of default to be close w 2ere as the coun-
terparties have a strong capacity to meet their contractuzl obligations in the near term. As & result, no loss allowance has been secognised
based an I3-manth expected credit [asses as any such impairmeant would be wholly insignificant to the Master Fund,

State Streat Bank and Trust Compary had a credit rating lssued by Moody's #t yearend of 423 (2020: Aa3). IHS Markit Ltd. had a credit rating issued
by Moody's atyear end of Bal (2020: Bal).

Serilor loans are purchased orsold 6a awhen-tssued or delayed dalivery basis and may be sectled 2 month or more afer the trade date, which
from time to time can delay the actual investment of avadable cash balances; interest Income is accrued based an the terms of the securities,
Seniar loans can be acquired through an agent, by assignment fram another holder of the loan, or as 2 participation interest in another holder’s
portion of the loan, When the Master Fund invests in 2 loan or participation, the funds are subject to the risk thetan intermediate participant
between the Master Fund and the borrowerwill fil to meet its obfigations to the Master Fund, inaddition to the risk that the bormower underthe
Ipan may defauit on its obligations.

Pursuan to the funds' ivsestment policy, the Manager is to monitor en-anongsing basis the funds’ cradit position.

{f} Financial derivative instruments

The Master Fung may emplay various immestmant technigues and instruments for investment purposes or for efficient portfolio management of
thair assets for hedging against market moverments, cusrenty exchange, intenest rate risks or atherwise, Any such instrumaents ane used under
the conditions and within the lirits laid down by the Manager. The Master Fund utitized farwards, futures, spthons and swap contracts during the
reporting period, and amy resulting gains or losses were reported in the Statements of comprehensive incorne (loss)

{g] Fair valuation estimation

The carrying value less impalrment provision of other receivables and payables ane assumed to 2pproximate their feirvalues. The fair value of
financial labilities for dieclasure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flow at the curreat market intenest ratethat is
gvailabie 10 the Master Fund for similar finandial instruments.
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Amendment oo IFRS T “Finanaial Instruments: Disclosure” requires the Master Fund to classify falr valise measurernents using 2 fairvaiue hierarchy
thetreflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) inactive markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1]

- Inputsotherthan quoted prices Included within Level 1 thatare abservable for asset orliability, efther dirsctly {that s, a5 prices) or indiractly
fthat is, derived from prices) {Level 2)

+  Inputs for the asset or lisbility that ae not based on observable market data {that is, unobsenvable Inputs] [Level 3}

The leve! in the fair value hieranchy within which the fzir valuee measurernaent is categesized inits entirely is determined on the basis of the lowest
level input that is significant to the falr value measurement in its entirety. For this purpese, the sipnificance of an input Is assessed against the fair
value measureiment in its entiraty. i a fair valus measurement uses observable inputs that requice significant adjustment based anunochservable
inputs, that measurement is a Level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of 2 particular input to the fair value measurement inits entirely

requines judgment, considering factors specific tathe asset or llability.

The determination of what constittes “obeervable” requires significant judgment by the funds. The funds consider absenvable data to be that
market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprigtary, and providied by independent
sources that ane actively imvokheed in the nelevant market,

irvestments whosevalpes are based on quoted market prices in active merkets, and therefore clazsified within Level 1, include active sted equs:
ties, exchange traded derivatives, LLS. government teasury bills and certain ron-1.5, saversign obligations. The Master Fund does notadjust the
queted price for these instruments.

Financial instrurnents that trade in markets that are not considened 1o be active but are valeed based on quoted marke: prices, dealerquotations
or slternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within Level 2, These include investment-grade corparate bonds and
cartain non-U.5. sovereign o5l gations, listed equities and OTC derivatives. As Level 2 investments Include positions that are not traded in active

marleets and/lor are subject to trensfer restrictions, valsations may be adjusted to refiect lliquidity and/for nen-transferabllity, which are generally
basad an available market informaticon.

For Financial instruments farwhich thera is no active market, the Master Fund may use internally developad models, which are usually based on
valuation methods and technigues penerally recognized as standard within the industry. Inputs for 2ssets and Usbilites that ase nat based on
obsarvable market data are classified within Level 3.
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The following table snetyzes the fairvaiue hierarchy of the Master Fund's financial assets and liabiities measured at fairvalue st the end ef the
reporting perigd Apeil 30, 2021,

Fair Value — Financial assels Linvel 1 Level 2 Lewel 3 Total
Irvestrment bn securfties:
Cammon siodks
Energy 5= 521 £ =211
Fixed Income;
Asset-becked securnities - 5.636,722 - 5,636,112
Coliataral on cotain dedvative contrasts, atvalue 0,000 - - 750,000
Canvertible bonds and notts
Capital gands - 326,564 - 326,564
Comminication services, - LASTIT - 1,857,2M
Consumer cyclicals - 6,512,855 - 6,514 555
Consumer stapies - 1984535 - 1284535
Energy - L 541317 = 1541317
Finaneiz’s - 1,268,148 = 1468148
Haaith cans - 5EITEM - BEITEM
Technology - 11,573,697 = 11578697
Transporiation - 1,756,270 - 1,798,510
Lhtilities and power — 739409 - 739409
Corporane bonds and notes
Basic materials - 4916373 - 4916373
Capital poods - 6,363,259 - £,363,209
Communication senvices - GIBLITT -, 6,781 377
Consumer cyclicals - 16,645,985 - 16,645,586
Consumer stoples - 4952328 e 4533995
Energy - 14,358,357 - 14,358,357
Financlals - 10485077 = 10,855,077
Heaith cane - 5219054 - 5219054
Technology - 4,138,501 - ERELT
Transpartation - [atAL - LTI
Utilities and power - 1544452 - 1544452
Foreign governmend and agency bonds and notes — BO025455 -_ E0,025456
Mostgage-backead securities
Ageacy esllmeralized mortgage obligations = 101545441 - 100545441
Commercial motgage-backed seoyritics - 30,562,736 - 3560736
Residetial mortgage-backed securities - 56,120.290 - 56,120,290
Purchiased options outstanding - TE2500 - T2 E00
Purchased swap oplionsoutstanding - 95T6ATE — B5TEATE
Seniorloans
Basic materials - 1473935 - 1473856
Capitai poods - 1,700,508 - 1,700,508
Communicabion ServTes - FETALI] - FETALiF)
Consumer cyclicals = 2,507,750 - 2,507,750
Cansumer staples - asiB4t - Ha1 AT
Financials — a3aar - azany
Health care - LA63,569 = 1,953,468
Technalogy - RS0 - 13503
Transportation s 385573 — 365,873
Short-temm Emadstments - 113507491 =2 112,527,451
Li5. government and egency mortgage oblgations - 372,643,100 - ITLEA3AN
Total investmaent in securities 750,000 £70,646,080 - E71,396,080
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FalrValue — Firandal assete cont Levell Leved 2 Level3 Total
D rivatives:

Forward contracts - 52,354 187 §= 52,754,187
Forvard premium swap apton contracts - 10,312,092 = 10,312,002
TG Total retirn swap cantracss - 108,227 - s
OTC Credit default contracts - 12.7354M) - 12735420
Total derivatives = 25,409,906 e 15,409,926
Total Financial assets at fair value through profit or less 5896,806,008
Fair value — Financial assets Levell Level 2 Lewel 3 Total
Cash equivalents. 5= 58,599.452 -l SHEFAER
Centrally deared imterest rate Swap cantracts - 947555 - 04T 550
Certrally cleanad total retum swap contriets - B8, 143 o G.0NE143
Futures contracts 135808 - - 199,598
Fair value — Financial liabilities Level 1 Level 2 Lewvel3 Total
Derivati

Forward contracts - 53217846 5— 53217 E4E
Forvrard prersitm Swap option contracts sy 5042446 - 0,08 445
OTC Total retum swep contracts - BBATS - B84TA
OTC Credit defaust conirects - 35,916,634 - 36,915,634
Total derivatives - 49,251,404 - 49,251 404
TEA 208 COMMBTLENS = 161,037,034 - 161,037,034
Writien options sutstanding - 443 485 = 442 485
Writtan swag pptions outstanding - 14582443 - 4,582 443
Total Financial Habilities at fair value through profit or loss 125,413,356
Fair Value — Finaneial liabilitles Level 1 Lewell Level 3 Total
Centrally cleared interect rate fwap contracts 5= LU TAT 606 4= SITM4TE35
Certralty cleared 1242] return Swap contracts - 14258049 - 14358043
Futunes Contracts 182578 - - 183978

All gther sssets and liabilities not measured a1 fairvalue but forwhich fairvalue is disclosed are classified a5 Level 2. Refler to the Staternents of
financial pesition for 2 brezkdown of assets and labiities and to Notes 3and 4 for a description of the valuation technigues.
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The foilowing teble analyzes the Fairvalue hierarchy of the Master Fund's financlal assets and Babilities measured atfalrvaiue at the end of the
reporting period Aprif 30, 2020,

Fair Value — Financial assets Lewel 1 Lovel 2 Level3 Total
Imvestment in securities:
Fined income:
Asset-backed securives f £9.235,85% G 48235869
Coliateral on certain derivative contracts, at value 5,926,000 2314577 - 8140577
Convertible bords and notes
Capital goods - 635,099 - £38,093
Communication services - 1,400,274 = 140857
Conirmer eyiizals - 3,085,762 - 3,065,762
Cansumer staples — 1.74832] i 1749941
Erergy - 603219 - 60,325
Fingrcials - 954,087 - 954 06T
Health care - 1473325 - 2873315
Techrology - 9685,375 - 9,685,575
Transportation — T2L1TS = 1173
Uilizies and power = 328,53 - 328,320
Corparatt bonds and notes
Basic mateials - 8,075,110 - 075110
Capital goods - TE N - Toa2T1E
Communicaion [enices — 1237829 - 1237929
Corsurmer cyclicals — 16595149 = JE655.040
Consurmer siapios - 5.455,/016 - 5455076
Energy - 13413438 - 13413438
Financials - 10,001,468 — 10701 458
Health care = 754083 - 7,554,983
Techroiogy - 33LE096 - 3385596
Transpostation - Mmasm - 398,578
Uitaties and pever - 3515118 - 3515,115
Forelgn povernment and agency bonds and notes - 45,118,384 - 45118384
Morigape-bached securities
Agency collateralized mortgage cbfgations - E2,5389, 182 - 52,530,182
Commercial mongage-backed securities - 3ATIE85 - 33473655
Ressdential mortgage-backed secuities - 44,784,129 - 44,284,128
Purchased options outstanding - LTS3 < L0751
Purchased swap options outstending - 20,51654% - 20516545
Seniaricans
Bamic matenials - Ta8,580 - TEE.580
Capital goods - 1588,202 - 1,658,200
Communication services - 556557 = 555,957
Consumer cycicals - 2290010 = 2,240,010
Consumer stapies - BE41ET - 854157
Enegy - 118850 - 158,530
Firancials - 81255 - 81255
Health care - T8 = 520,133
Technology = 141,555 - 141,955
Transponation rr 136,100 i 126,100
Short-tenm investments - 54,820,500 - 84,430,500
U5, government and agency mortigage obgations - 437,775,168 - 437,775,181
Toual ivestment in securities 5,926,000 ETT,T55,928 - BA3,681,508
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Fair Value — Financial assets conl Laval L Leval 2 Lewval 3 Total
Derivatives:

Farward contracts - 331585 - 53198759
Forsard presrium swan opiion contracts - 23 3E8,B44 - 223868844
OTC Tatal regizm swap contracts - E21,130 - B21,130
OTC Credit defaut contracts - 18,011,868 - 18,001,865
Total derivatives - 44,220,581 o 44,230,581
Total Financial assets at falr valwe through profit or lass £927,902,509
FairValus — Finandal assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 2 Total
Cash egquivalents i— SI.TT3. 62 L SanTaTeR
Centrafty cloaned intérest rate sap contracts - 37950548 - 3250048
Centrafty cleaned total returm swap contratts - [ R - 6032412
Futures contracts 12,185 - - 12,165
Fair Valie — Financial [labilities Levell Level 2 Level3 Tetal
Derhvatives:

Farwiend oonIracts = $4.T30.052 5= $4.730,042
Forwand premium Swap eption contracts - 11,965,251 - 11,989,251
OTC Torad return swap contracts - 45T - 45T
OTC Cregitdefault contracts = 38,540,768 - 55076
Total derivatives - 55,454,735 - 55,424,735
THA sale cornmitments - 169,589,843 - 159,680,845
Written aptions outstanding - Lagzniz - 1403002
Written swap options tutstanding - 13,253,458 - 19358488
Total Financial liabitities at fair value through prefiterloss $245,836,0T9
Fair Value — Financtal liabilities Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total
Cerrally cleered intenest rate swap contracts 5— 540,754 830 f— 540,754 830
Centrally cieared total refum Saapcontracis = 6,965,503 - 6,965,503
Futurgs coNTracts 628,191 - - 628190

Al gther assets and fiabilities not measered at fai value but forwhich fair value is disciosed are classified as Level 2. Refer tothe Statements of
financial position for a breakdown of assets and liabilities and to Notes 3 and 4 for a description of the valuation technigues,

At the start and close of the reporting period, Level 3 investments in securities represented less than 1% of the funds” net assets and were pat
eansidered & signifcant postion of the Master Fund's pertiofie.
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Financial Assets 2t fairvalue through profiz or loss:

Aprilag
1 4 2020
Financial astets heid for reding:
Cashequivalents $8,855.482 SITTTA.TeL
Dbt segurities 147,335,202 TEH 896,453
Equity securities 221 -
Repurchese agresments 40,200,000 55,288,000
L5, treasury bills and commencial paper (2020 US. treasury bis and commerdial paper) TLAATAAL 28,132,500
Drerivatives ST 66,444.935
Collatera! on certain dedvative contracts 5,000 B 140577
Total financisl assets at fairvalue through profit or foss {including cash equivalents) £906,505,455 4958,676,271
April3g
021 2029
Other et changes in fair value on fingncial assets at fair vatue through proftor loss
Fmallped $23,821655 $13382582
Change in unseslized 9,326,707 {58,908,578)
Tatal gaind{losses) 433,748,362 5l45,543,996)

{h) Capital risk management

The capital af the funds is represented by the net assets attributable to holders of redesmable units. The amount of net assets attributableto
hoiders of redeemable units can change significently on @ daily basis, 25 the funds are subject to delly subscripthons and redempiions 2t the
discretion.of unitholders. The funds’ ohjective when managing capital isto safeguard the funds' ability ta continue a3 8 going contern in order
to provide returns for unitholders and maintain a capitsl base 1o support the development of the investment activities of the Master Fund. The
Manaper, at its discretion, may scale down 2 significant redemption that it deems would materaliy prejudice the management of the fundsin
accordancewith its investment objectives.

In order to malntain or adjust the capital structurs, the funds' pelicies aneto perform the following:

«  Menitor the level of daily subseriptions and redemptions relative to the a5s4ts it expects to be able to liquidate within 2 day and adjust the
amount of distributions (if any} the funds pay to redeernable unitholders,

« Redesm and issue naw unftsin accordante with the constitutional documents of the funds, which inclede the ability oo restrict redemptions
and require certain minimurn hoidings and subscriptions.

TheManager manitars capital on the basis of the value of net assets attributable to redeemable unitholders.
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9. FEES AND EXPENSES

(a) Transactions with Related parties who have significant influence

Management fees

The Manager, an atfiliate of the funds, may be entitled to an 2nnual fee afupto 2.00% for Class S Uinits 2nd 0.50% for Class | Units payzble out
o thie assets of the Master Fund, For the fiscal year, at the discretion of the Manager, the management fee was nol assessed to Class S Units
associated with the Master Fund. The Manager will receive an annual fee &f up to 1.609% for Ciass J Units and 1.00% for Class M Units, the Units
associated with the Feeder Eurid, ser 2nnum on the average monthiy netassets of each Class of the Freeder Fund,

Distribution fees

The Manager shall pay Putnam International Distributors, Ld. {the Distributor, an affliate of the funds, a fee as agreed between the Manzger and
the Distributor out of the Manager's fee, The Distributor may shaneits fees with other parties such as athersub-distribatars Insuch mannerand o
such metent &4 it sees fit fram tme to time. A2 the end of the raporting period, the Manager paid the Distributor $4,307,212 (2020: 54,664,380).

Itis currently expected that the total expense ratio lexciuding amortized arganizational expense] for Class J Units will not exceed LBO% and
Class M Unitt wil not exceed 1,20% per annum of the average monthiy Net Asset Value of the Feeder Fund, The Manager reserves the right ta
modify this total exoense ratio at any time,

Trustee fees

Pursiant to the Master Fund Trust Deed, FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited (the Master Furd Trustee}
fiormarty, CI8C Bank and Trust Company [Caymany Limited) is entitied to be paid out of the assets of the Master Fund a fee of up to $22,500 per
annum subject to an annual review where the fee may be increased for various reasans such as inflation without Unitholder consent as long as the
fees are still considerad to be at normal commenclal rates.

Such feeswill accrue daily and be paid quarterly in amaars, The Master Fund Trustee shall be reimbursed for a0 reasonable outof-pocket
expenses incurred by the Master Fund Trustes in relation to the Master Fund out of the Mastes Fund's assets.

Pursuant te the Feeder Fund Trust Deed, MaplesFs Limited (the Feeder Fund Trustes) is entitled 1o be paid out of the assets of the Feeder Fund a
fee of up to 0.023 per anrum on the average daily Net Asset Value of the Feeder Fund up to $50,000 per annum and subject i a $15,000 minimum
seryear. Such fees will acerue daily and be paid quarterly in arrears. The Feeder Fund Trustee shafl be reimbursed for all reasonable aut-of-pocket
enpenses inourred by the Seedar Fund Trustee in relation to the Feeder Fund out of the Fesder Fund's assets.

(b} Transactions with Non-Related parties

Custodian fees

The Manager shali pay to State Street Bank and Trust Company (the Custodiani, out of the 2ssets of the Master Fund, a fize cfup 1o 0.10% per
annurm on the sverage manthly Net AssetValue of the Master Fund, accrued daity and paid monthlyin amreers. The Manager shall alsa payto

the Custodian, out of the assets of the Feeder Fund a fee of up to0.10% per annum on the average monthly Net Asset Value of the Feeder Fund
acerued afly and paid monthiy in arrears, The Manager shel! discharge reasonable put-of-pocket expenses payable to the Custodian out ofeach
fund's assets,

Sub-Accounting Agent fees

The Custodian has appointed State Street Cayman Trust Campany, Lid. {State Street) (the Sub-Accounting Agent) to act as sub-accounting agent
in ralation o the funds. For adminsstrative services performed by the Sub-Aocounting Agent, the Manager shall pay to the Sub-Aocounting Agent
out of the assets of the Master Fund 2 fes up to $67,500 plus 0.0030% per annum with respect to the Net Asset Value of the Master Fund. Additisaal
manthly per quote pricing fees will apply. This fee wilt accrue daily and be paid monthly In armears. The Manager shall discharge reascnable aut-af-
packet expenses payable to the Sub-Aocounting Agent out of the Master Fund'sassets. The Manager shall also pay the Sub-Accounting Ageat out
of the assetsof the Feeder Fend an administrative fee of appraximately 55,000 per annurm plus manthly per quote pricing fees. Thisfee is included
with the Custody fees on the Statements of comprehensive incame {loss], and will accrue daily-and be paid monthly in arrears, The Manager shail
discharge reasonable out-of pocket expensas payable to the Sub-Accounting Agent out of the Feeder Fund's assets.

The funds may enterinto eigpenss offset arrangements with State Streat wherehy State Street's foes are reduced by cradits allowed an cash
balances. For the years ended Ap-il 39, 2021 and April 30, 2020, the funds’ experses were not reduced as a resuit of expense offset arrangements.
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Transfer Agent fees

The Manager shall pay Citibank Europe plc the Transfer Agent), cut of the assets of the funds, 2 fee based on the volume of transfer agent activity,
subject to a $300,000 minimum perannum on the Master Fusd and 2 575,000 minimwem per annum on the Feedar Fund, accrued dally and paid
monthly in arrears. The Manager shall discharge reasonable out-of-pocket expenses payable to the Transfer Agent out of each fund's assets.

Other Expenses

In adkdition, each respective fund bears all other expenses incidental to its operations and business, including, amongst others all compliance
costs and the fees of its auditors and legal advisers; custady charges; interest and commitment fees on [oans and debt balances; any income,
withhalding or other taxes; costof communication with Unithelders and prospective investors.

Each fund may be required to pay eubscription and redemption charges in connection with imestments in ctherimestment companies. Each
furid mary be requined 10 pay brokerage commissions in relatien to portiolio transactions.

10. PAYMENTS BY AFFILIATES

The Managervoluntarily reimbursed the Master Fund $5,135 for trading erarswhich oocurred during the reporting period, The reimbursement by
the Manager of such amaounts had no material impact on total return,

11. MARKET CONDITIONS

I the normal course of business, the Master Fund trades financial instrurnents and enters into Fnancial transactions where risk of potential foss
eists dfise to-changesin the market {market risk) or failure of the contracting perty to the transection to perform (eredit risk]. The Master Fund may
be exposed to acditional credit risk thetan institution or other entity with which the Master Fund has unsettled or open transactions will default
2% disoussad in previous notes.

O July 27, 2017, the United Kingdom's Financial Conduct Autharity ("FCAT, which regulstes LEBOR, announced 3 desire to phase out the use of
LIBOR by the end of 2021 In Novermber 2020, this datewas extended until June 30, 2023 for certain widely foliewed tenors jovernight and 1, 3+ 6+
and 12-month U5, dollar LIBOR). LIBOR has historically been a comman benchmark interest rate intdeés used to make adjustments tovariable-rate
loans. It is used throughout global banking and financial industries 1o determine Interest rates for 2 variety of financial instruments and bomowing
arangermients, The transition process might lead to Increased volatility and illiguidity In markets that currently rely on LIBOR to determine intenest
ralios. [t eoeld aleo load ta 3 reduction in the velue of some LIS0OR-based imestment s and reduce the eflectiveness of new hedges placed against
existing LIBOR-based investments. While some LIBOR-Based instrumients may contemplate a scenariowhere UBOR is no longer available by
proviging for an alternative rate-satting methodology, not all may have such provisions and there may be significant uncertainty regarding the
effectivencss of any such zliemative methodologies. Since the usefulness of LIBOR a5 a benchmark could deteriorate during the transition period,
these effects could dogur prior to June 30, 2023

Beginning in January 2020, glabal firancial markets have experienced and may continue to experience significant volatility resulting from the
spread af avirus known as Covid-13. The outbreak of Covid-19 has resulted intravel and border restrictions, quarantines, supply chain disruptions,
lgwar consumer demand and genaral masket uncertainty. The effects of Covid-19 have edversely affected, and may cantinue to adversely affect
the ghobal economy, the economies of certaln nations and individual issers, all of which may negatively impact the Master Fund's performance,
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12. OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL AND DERIVATIVE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The falleedng tatles summarize any derivatives, regurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements, at theend of the reporting
pariods, that 278 subject to 30 enforceable master netting agreement or ssmilar agreement For securities iending transactions of bomowing
transactions associated vith securities sold short, i any, see Note 3. Forfinancial reporting purposes, the Master Fund does not offset financial
assets and Fnancial labilities that are subject to the master netting agreements in the Statements of financial position.

] g %- o )
L
: R
k- £ E-i > =
=S

PRN B + N PR
Aprit 30, 2021 = = E & &
Assels:
Centrally cleased initerest rate swap contracis i— g 5201536 §— =
OTEC Tota! return swap contracts™ - 45,378 = - 8587
Centrally clssned tatal retum swap contracest - - 64,564 - -
OTC Credit dafault contracts = protection soid™ - o - A= -
TG Cradit default contracts - protection purchased™ - - - - -
Futunes contracts? - - - - -
Eorward currency oontracts® 156,048 7174 = - £1.201
Forward premlu Swap option contracts” 3538653 137085 - - 1009711
Pyrchased swap aptions™ 456,740 ITE 38 - - f3.042
Purchased options™™ - - - — -
Replrchase ppreements” - - - 0,800,000 —
Total Assets £4,173,441 S554,6T4 LLOTEATD 540,800,000 £1,183,341
Liakdlities:
Centrally cleared interesl rate swap contracts® - - 4071 - -
0T Total retum swap contracts™ 3454 BEG2 - - -
Centraky cleared total return swag-contracts® - — 675,931 - -
QT Credirdefaul: contradts - protection sald™ 655,198 - - - =
OTC Credit default contracts - pretection puschased™ - - - - -
Futures confractst — - - - -
Fesward curmency contracts’ 174,541 5,868 - - 185,812
Forwand premilim swap oplion cortracts® 3187418 107,306 - - BET3ET
VWrithen swao options® STT.854 TS B44 - - L0233
Writhen options" - - — - =
Total Uabilies 44,549,568 51,108,030 51,250,062 — 52,153.432
Total Financial and Derfvative Net Assets §(376,524} 5538,358) $(73.582) 540,800,000 S(aT0,091)
Total financinl instruments received (pledged) ™t §l254,0000  5{504,0000 $=  S40,800,000 (970,051
Total cash collateral received [pledged)*t - §= = — $—
Het amount §l122,524) $[24,358) §[73.592) 5= §—
Lantrotisd financiat instrumends recedved fncluding TBA commitments™ = - e = §—
Controlled coth collateral rectiand fineluding TEA commitments)™ 5= S = 5= $=
Uncantrobed colioteral recersed F— G B 541,616,000 —
Collatern! (pledged) (fckeding TBA commitmants!™ 254,000 Sl514,000] - §— $1,052,000)

* Excludes premivns, iFany, included in Financial assets andjor Financial liabilities t fair valie throtgh profit or loss on the Siatements of financial position.
* Ipcheded in Financial assets and/or Financial fabilitles at fair vahse through profitor loss on the Statements of Sinancial position.
1 Adgstinnal eollaterd may be required from ogrtain brokers based snindividual agreements.
* Covered by masternetting agreerment (Note &,
* Ay rver-collateralization of tota financial and derhvative net assets isnot shown. Collazeral may include amounts related tounsetted agreements.
*ncludes current day s variation margin only 2 reparted on the Statemants of financial position, which is net eollateralized. Collateral pledged for initial marginonfuty
eontracts and centrally cleaned swap contracts, which is notincludid inthe tabie above, amatntad to 55085,000 and 510,280,000, respectively.
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-
B =i -
s H 4= = g g =
L | B I T
& ay m - % =i

EE gE § 55 853 2% 25 il

g3 £ sf g5 a3 5 2E
5— — 5 5— 5= — 5- -
- L4 - FERLT - 4510 15,344 -
1,245,426 2,466,555 — S0EB45 - - FAFLY R BEL2T2
- — —_— - —_— - mﬁ -
— 15458 - 526,578 106480 88,286 - -
- - - 235135 - 1785782 - -
- - -~ 2215333 - 1727500 - -
- - - = TOLEDD - -
51,246,426 $2,488,567 - $3,903,185 $106,480 §4,320,078 $2,141,463 $661,272
- 16,73% £ 17438 - 204 2038 -
5,706,015 5,554,558 - 4583573 - - TAB3,559 L1758
- - - - - - 152303 -
- 5543 — 304,130 155,194 12115 - —-
= — - 280,313 - 2538771 - -
- - 1,528,078 - 5,02 B2 - -
o — — - — 447 485 — i
£6,706,019 %5,637,824 §389 §7,063,589 £12¢,194 48,775,895 47,304,800 $1,117,653
5(5,459,583) 403,148,257) $laady 503,260,404 §[89,714) §(3,505,817)  §{5,083,231] $l4s6,411)
§(5.422,000) 503,185,257} - 5(3,160,804) £[89,714) ${3,905,817) (5,063,331} ${386,000)
— 5— i— = §— §— §= S
{37,593 S $[389) = 5— 5— 5= §(ma.11)
5= s 5~ 5— 5~ 5— 5~ 5=
$= - §— 5— G— i §— 5=
f- f— — - §— §— §— i—
S{5,422.0000 SEITLH0} §= £3,258,000) S[1E0,000) S0, 114,000 SIET2,0000 $385000)
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' E '
: i : 5
g5 £ B : g .
BE OB % 3 i B
;é £ z3 é E E & g ! & Total
§— §m - §~ 5~ 5 5 $251,886
- - - = = . - 10822
- - = - - - Ta4,584
1005359 - = A - - - BAOB AT
- — - - - - - 05
180,170 10,036 750,530 85226 150,622 — BLIOGE 2254087
413,90 - — 452915 2,058,553 581755 - 0312092
442,713 - - 295350 444652 - = 576,476
- - - - - - - 702,800
- - ~ - - - - 40,800,000
$5,641,724 510,036  $750,530 $344,501 52,651,827 681,755 sen038 573,238,814
- - i — - - - 478,071
10,133 - - - - - —~ 63,478
- - - - - - = 675,551
6,508,080 == - - — - beee 2,580,570
- - - - - - - 18,203
333,843 245730 £24.950 21055 58,187 — 135,385 B.217,846
3,295 - = 39,151 LE05T 312 6TE - 50084546
4152411 - - 819,658 B35545 - - 145m ALY
- - - - - - - 441 485
$11,297,801 $245,750 $624,500 51,070,378 §2,414,739 $312.678 $138,355 461,218,633
(5,656,07T) $(235, 744} 5125,540 S225.87T} $243,088 £368,077 5(57,347) $12,120,181
Sises60TT)  SRasTed SLoon) SE2SETT) - $=  sisnaem
5— - = §= 5243,0%8 363,077 §—
— $— 5236540 - . - §-
5 - . 5 §— 5— 5 §-
§— $= 6 §— $350.000 $400,000 s £750.000
& - - 5— §-- 5= - $4LE6000
4{5,E33,000) SEL00n 5{112,060) H253,000) - 5 S{131,000) S{30,054.000)
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E i <
= Ew 2 <

E 2 S% 5 E

- £ £ §-§ 3 3

&3 E iif  &d &
April 30, 2020
Aszets
Contraily cleared interest rate S p conracist §— i= 51,082,535 §— =
OTE Tota! returm swap contracts™ 1,582 346,855 - - T3
Centrally cleared total ety swap eontracts® - - 351,744 - =
O Lredit defaul contracts —protection sold™ - - - - -
OTC Credit dafauls contracts — pratsetion purchased™ = - - - -
Fubyeres contracts® . - — —- —
Foredod currency contracts’ 0T 407,208 - - 111887
Foremnd presmism swap optisn coniracts” 3037130 280,122 - - 2878860
Purchased swap options™* - 443515 - = 1858 947
Furckased options® ™ 180,871 & - - L4507
Repurchase agresments™ - - - 56,288,000 -
Total Assets $3,446,0125  3L,4TE109 51,438,742 §55,288,000 45,087,891
Linbdlities:
Centraliy cleared interestrate swap cantractst - - 981,295 = =
OTC Total return swap contracts™ - T6,B0L - - -
Centrally cleared total resurn swap contracts® - - 02,255 - -
OTE Credit default contracts = protiction sold™ T54,550 - - = -
OTC Credit default contracts - protection purchased™ - = - - -
Futunes contractst - - - - -
Forwaed cusmency contracks’ 1BL114 2154814 - - 168147
Forwaed premium swap option contracts® 1,084 740 109424 - = 243120
Witten swap options” - TBG451 - - 2,270,287
\Written options” 64975 - - - 43100
Tatal Lisbilithes §2,085,480  $1,202,530 51,183,590 — 53,424,654
Total Financial and Derivative Net Assets £1,360,645 275,579 $251,152  $56,188,000 51,663,227
Total financial instruments received (plodged]™t 51,345,910 - §— 456,288,000 §—
Total cash collateral received (pledped)™t — §275,579 5= — $1,663,227
Nt amount 314,735 — $251,152 5 -
Cantrofied financial inglrumends recaied (nckaing TEA commitmants ™ 51345900 G 5= i— G
Cartroded cosh eallpterc] received (indluding TEA cormrmiements)™ - S2503,000 i— G 51, E00,000
Uncontmwed ofictern! recsioed = 5= G $ETAL3 TR0 §=
Coligreraf pledged fncluding TBA sommitmenis]™ — fom §— i— S

* Exclucles promiums, If any. included in Financisl agsets andfor Financial liabilities at fairvalue through profitor loss on the Statements of financial position.

 Invclidad in Financial assets and/or Financial hiabilities at fair valus through proftor loss on the Statements of financial position.

T Addtional collatesal may be required from certain brokers besed on indhidual agreements.

* Coveriedd bry rassber nesting agreement (Note &),

# gy over-colateralization of todal finandial and dervative net essets is not shown, Callaseral mey inchuge smounts related tounsettied agreerments.

¥ |nelisdas currenk day's variation mangin onty as reportied an the Statermants of financial position, which is notcolinteralized. Cofiateral pledged for infial margin
o futures contracts and centrally cheared swap contracts, which Is nat included in the table above, amounted to S1U96,621 304 56,303,865, respectively.
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5 - : 5 .
— = == - —
e i3 2 iF 85 &, <3 i
e ] £ 5% 22 E 3 E: EE
o 3 : 55 -+ : £ i3 3
s SE 2 SE 242 &3 a SE
§— $— §— §— §m §— o 5—
- 57,735 ot o418 - 20,043 5107 -
3,567,753 PR T e — 1415700 - - 4,330,240  LT0,E06
- 166,731 - E50,055 100,177 aram - -
- . - 3,007,227 - 9,263,188 - -
— - - 1141734 = 4,352,733 = =
- - - 48582 - 1163033 - -
$3,657,753 4,305,690 — $5,537,800 $180,177 415,133,978 44,358 347 £2,170,606
= 17,545 2422 4Tois 1nrsa 88,135 -
TAIL104 7,765,301 - 5,673,307 - - 8,205,545 1,436,106
i - = - - - 80143 -
= ITEIS - 1,134,597 331161 1032706 - -
- - - 1,209,880 - S44T 32 = =
- - - 710,559 - 3540118 - -
- - - 62,850 - LT - -
$7,832,104 §6,134,083 54432 49,008,022 433,161 $11,363,082 58,373,003 £1,436,106
5(4,164,351) $(3,828,397) §4,422) 5(2,500,223) ${240,984) £3,869 896 §(3,978,578} §734,500
§(3,965,217) §[2,794,530) 5= 52,500,223 §100.980) $= = §734,500
5= §— 5= - & $3LE00,000 503,833,561 -
40198,134) 5{33,462) 14,822} - $(40,004) 463,895 $(140,015] $
5— & G 5= b 5 - 4756293
$— = 5 §— 5— $3,800,000 §36,000 L
§— = G i 5 5— - i—
$(3,965,217) 53794550 §== §(2.520,413) £{200,380} 5— 53,835.561) §=

Putnam Diversified income Trust Funds {Cayman) 38

154/259



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

g £ - g
et m E %
$3 3 i g :
1 DN "R
= £5 2 E = E g ; 3 Total
5— 5~ 5~ 5= 5— — 51,082,598
— - p - - - 621020
- = - - - - 351 T4E
BISTALS - - - - - 17546348
- 133,469 582,370 235,153 138,780 153,507 3,198,740
BTATALS - - 113888 - 22,388 B4
11,284,945 - = 12300 L211.547 - 1,516,845
= - - - - - 1707553
- - - - - - 56,288,000
$16,269,798 133,469 $582,3T0 $358,183  $2,450,216 £133,807 4122100761
-~ - - . - - 681,29
- - - - - - #AET2
- - - - - - 202,265
SR28.2% - - - = = H A5
- - - - - - 25,142
- g 52l 655645 4470 152,313 14918 4730042
1,940,184 - - - 1134672 - 11,968,251
10,083,021 = - a2TmT 1,550,155 - 18258459
= - - - - - 1483002
S18,631,441 $369,521 $655,646 $40T,21T 52537140 §34,918 §77,245,049
§(2,361,543) $(226,052) 4(73,276} §[49,034} §{446,524) 598,589 546,757,712
$02,361,643] £[238,053) = (49,084} ${403,847) 533,583
- §= — 5= §= -
o - EEER 1] 5= $[43,077) §—
— — 5— S &= S112,574 42 218577
§— §— §— - 5= e 55,526,000
i = 5— = £~ b= 57,414,780
ST TRT) §l250952) G 5110978 51803 B4T) — 51T B B
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13 APPROVAL OF FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
These financial statements wene approved by the Trustees on August 17, 2021,

14. EYENTS AFTER THE STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE
There were no significant post-Staterments of financial position events through August 12, 2021,
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2021
432,195 47,498
2,031 223
430,164 47,275
23,769,260
47,337,535
5.98 657
6.08 668
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2015 12 96,767,628 106
2016 12 65,195,828 72
2017 12 22,058,670 24
2018 12 14,992,655 16
2019 12 11,125,913 12
2020 12 24,433,136 27
2021 14,706,544 16

100
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1937

2021 2,030 22.3 181

2021
2021

431,297,603
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2021
109.90

31

23

25

193
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31
122,585,635 13,472,161 108,189,613 11,890,038
637,244 70,033 1,772,239 194,769
1,360,165 149,482 657,479 72,257
32 4 5,582 613
124,583,076 13,691,680 110,624,913 12,157,678
17,171,529 1,887,151 12,944,383 1,422,588
7,414,104 814,810 6,488,771 713,116
15,863,976 1,743,451 16,282,005 1,789,392
93,537,099 10,279,727 79,814,077 8,771,567
31,681,486 3,481,795 28,551,256 3,137,783
10,819 1,189 15,773 1,733
10 1,576,815 173,292 3,120,870 342,984
167,255,828 18,381,415 147,217,135 16,179,163
(42,672,752) (4,689,735) (36,592,222) (4,021,485)
856,655 94,146 288,343 31,689
(43,529,407) (4,783,882) (36,880,565) (4,053,174)

11

(4,880) (536) 213,290 23,441
(4,880) (536) 213,290 23,441
(43,534,287) (4,784,418) (36,667,275) (4,029,734)
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31
5,748,800 631,793 2,779,923 305,514

12,099,212 1,329,703 11,233,515 1,234,563

12,084,001 1,328,032 3,484,160 382,909

169,591 18,638 13,774 1,514

16,390 1,801 22,502 2,473

828,272 91,027 465,760 51,187

30,946,266 3,400,995 17,999,634 1,978,160

1,720,781 189,114 813,403 89,393

2,631,970 289,254 5,644,402 620,320

1,036,107 113,868 303,732 33,380

686,520 75,449 234,341 25,754

6,075,378 667,684 6,995,878 768,847

(1,051,845) (115,598) (736,767) (80,971)

491,640,841 54,031,328 433,924,344 47,688,285

(458,271,120)  (50,363,996)  (414,741,713)  (45,580,114)

11 (7.446,988) (818,424) (7,442,108) (817,888)
24,870,888 2,733,311 11,003,756 1,209,313

30,946,266 3,400,995 17,999,634 1,978,160
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12 31
(736,767) (80,971) 433,924,344 47,688,285  (414,741,713) (45,580,114) (7,442,108) (817,888) 11,003,756 1,209,313
741,100 81,447 (741,100) (81,447)
(58,457,597) (6,424,490) 58,457,597 6,424,490
57,401,419 6,308,416 57,401,419 6,308,416
(4,880) (536) (4,880) (536)
(43,529, 407) (4,783,882) (43,529,407)  (4,783,882)
(1,051,845) (115,598) 491,640,841 54,031,328 (458,271,120) (50,363,996) (7,446,988) (818,424) 24,870,888 2,733,311
(15,728,387) (1,728,550) 416,237,588 45,744,511 (377,861,148) (41,526,940) (7,655,398) (841,328) 14,992,655 1,647,693
1,534,500 168,642 (1,534,500) (168,642)
(19,221,256) (2,112,416) 19,221,256 2,112,416
32,678,376 3,591,354 32,678,376 3,591,354
213,290 23,441 213,290 23,441
(36,880, 565) (4,053,174) (36,880,565)  (4,053,174)
(736,767) (80,971) 433,924,344 47,688,285  (414,741,713) (45,580,114) (7,442,108) (817,888) 11,003,756 1,209,313

164/259



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 12 31 2019 12 31
(42,672,752) (4,689,735) (36,592,222) (4,021,485)
(856, 655) (94,146) (288,343) (31,689)
(155,817) (17,124) (13,774) (1,514)
6,112 672 4032 443
238,564 26,218 206,015 22,641
(865,697) (95,140) 2,247,488 246,999
(8,599,841) (945,123) (1,793,088) (197,060)
26,919 2,958 206,196 22,661
907,377 99,721 (322,850) (35,481)
(3,012,432) (331,066) 3,726,165 409,506
22,412 2463 1,495 164
732,375 80,488 314,837 34,601
(54,229,435) (5,959,815) (32,304,049) (3,550, 215)
(26,534) (2,916)
(26,534) (2,916)
(218,650,178)  (24,029,655)  (178,954,041)  (19,667,049)
276,051,597 30,338,071 211,632,417 23,258,403
(198,227) (21,785) (194,697) (21,397)
57,203,192 6,286,631 32,483,679 3,569,956
(4,880) (536) (38,140) (4,192)
2,968,877 326,280 114,956 12,634
2,779,923 305,514 2,664,967 292,880
5,748,800 631,793 2,779,923 305,514
288,109 31,663 252,145 27,711
10,819 1,189 15,773 1,733
58,457,597 6,424,490 19,221,256 2,112,416
741,100 81,447 1,534,500 168,642
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PAC
PAH
02110
100
AUM

2020 12 31 2019 12 31

24,870,889 11,003,756

1ASB

IFRS

IFRS
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COVID-19 2020

CovID-19

12
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two-sided markets
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2020 2019 12 31

2020 12 31
24,183,213 24,183,213
24,183,213 24,183,213
4,352,751 4,352,751
4,321,751 4,352,751
2019 12 31
14,717,675 14,717,675
14,717,675 14,717,675
6,457,805 6,457,805
6,457,805 6,457,805

2020 2019 12 31
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2009 12
CDO
CDO
812,868

2019 12 31

2019
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2020

2017
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2017

CDO

2019 12 31

CDO

6,112

2020

36

2020
4,032
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2020 2019 12 31
8,836,552 8,610,479

2020 2019 12 31

23,165,142,394

2020 2019 12 31
1,360,165 657,479
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2019

2020
93,537,099
EIP
2020

2019 12 31
79,814,077
301.7701-3
2019 12 31

12,099,212
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2020 2019 12 31
11,233,515
13,481,003
EIP
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2020 2019 12 31

2020 2019

probable threshold
IFRS

2020 12
31 2019 12 31

AOCL
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AOCL

AOCL

IFRS 16
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IAS 2020 IAS
IAS IAS
IFRS 2020
IFRS
IFRS
IAS IAS
IAS 37
IAS 38
SIC 32
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2020 12 31

7,296 131,506 388,203 527,005

(435) (117,708) (386,360) (504,503)

6,861 13,798 1,843 22,502

(20,555) (20,555)

(1,043) (3,247) (1,822) (6,112)

20,555 20,555

7,296 110,951 388,203 506,450

(1,478) (100,400) (388,182) (490,060)

5,818 10,551 21 16,390
2019 12 31

115,272 385,199 500,471

(115,272) (385,199) (500,471)

7,296 16,234 3,004 26,534

(435) (2,436) (1,161) (4,032)

7,296 131,506 388,203 527,005

(435) (117,708) (386,360) (504,503)

6,861 13,798 1,843 22,502

176/259



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 12 31 2019 12 31
11,867,221 3,291,234
131,104 116,507
85,676 76,419
12,084,001 3,484,160
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
223,401 248,791
604,871 215,441
1,528
828,272 465,760
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
667,623 215,766
18,898 18,575
686,520 234,341

1771259



2020

2020 2019

2019 12 31
2019 12 31
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31
303,732 248,269
1,012,472 302,117
(288,109) (252,145)
8,012 5,491
1,036,107 303,732
2019 12 31
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
148,364 10,486
21,227 3,288
169,591 13,774
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
1,012,472 302,117
1,012,472 302,117
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
(155,817) (13,774)
(155,817) (13,774)
856,655 288,343
12 31
2020
2020

2007 12 31
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2020 2019 12 31 17
2020 12 31
203,600 11,841 215,441
627,994 627,994
(233,570) (4,994) (238,564)
598,024 6,847 604,871
2019 12 31
406,249 406,249
15,207 15,207
(202,649) (3,366) (206,015)
203,600 11,841 215,441
2020 2019 12 31
2020
2019 12 31 208,662
210,470
2020 12 31
2021 243,131
2022 239,382
2023 237,507

720,020
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(52,397)
667,623

2019 12 31
2020 214,700
2021 5,528
2022 1,843
222,071
(6,305)
215,766

2020 12 31

214,624
452,999
667,623

2019 12 31
203,615
12,151
215,766
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2010 31
uLc PIC ULC 6,740,991
PIC ULC
2020 2019 12 31 1,051,845 736,767
2020 2019 12 31
2020 2019
12 31 12 31
U.S. PUSH
(4,221,434) (6,492,992)
PIC ULC (9,181,330) (8,592,762)
PFTC
(11,814,299) (8,050,121)
PSERV 196,421 183,429
PIA
335,491 342,641
P1SCO 260,458 407,908
PIIL
(631,845) 422,278

PRM 2,763,192 2,351,458
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UK
PIL 3,105,429 3,910,823
PIM
18,136,072 14,780,571
(1,051,845) (736,767)
2020 2019 12 31 AUM
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
10,265,071 5,931,752
AUM 4,593,415,714 2,116,683,812
2020 2019 12 31 303,260
1,121,509
2020 2019 12 31
82 81
2020 2019 12 31

40,367 383,110
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2019 PFTC PFTC
PFTC
PAC
PIC ULC PIIL
PFTC PIC ULC PIIL
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
77,665,437 66,824,007
77,665,437 66,824,007
2,696,962 2,879,350
13,463,112 14,113,088
80,302 117,882
13,773,073
16,240,376 30,883,393
61,425,061 35,940,614
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2020
2019 12 31 1,360,165 657,479
2020 2019 12 31 93,537,099 79,814,077
2020 12 2019 12
31 31
PIL 10 13,186,906 11,985,579
PISCO 4,001,947 4,562,858
PIA 10 893,803 1,118,869
PIIL 2,339,858 2,264,478
PIC ULC 4,064,517 3,245,410
PFTC 2.28 1,304,802 1,114,561
PIM 67,745,266 55,522,322
93,537,099 79,814,077
32.5
20.25
2020 12 31
741,100
58,457,597
2019 12 31
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19,221,256
401
2020 2019
12 31 326,256 313,782
PUSH
2020 2019 12 31
1,375,346 1,186,340
2020 12 31
2,400,863
EIP
EIP
EIP
IFRS EIP
EIP

EIP
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2020 2019 12 31
1,337,653 794,334
2020 2019 12 31
506,658 349,159
2020 12 31
5,955,194
3.30 2020 12 31
334,351
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
323,394 16.07 226,600 17.71
199,180 11.50 139,194 14.71
(54,100) 18.90 (31,400) 21.85
11,848 15.05
(9,426) 15.92 (11,000) 16.28
12 31
470,896 13.79 323,394 16.07
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
416,543 389,551
601,773 379,454
2,277,464 2,174,713
38,687

3,334,467 2,943,718
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2020 2019 12 31 31,681,486
28,551,256
2020 12 31 2019 12 31

PUSH 20,668,138 18,962,389

PRM (485,430) (496,566)

PRM 1,703,939 1,664,855

PRM 3,284,563 2,961,219

PRM 5,745,325 4,764,235

PSERV 764,951 695,124

31,681,486 28,551,256

187/259



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
457,671 417,388
356,776 408,449
233,711 202,649
197,077 913,465
40,367 383,110
6,112 4,032
4,998 3,366
1,957
280,103 786,454
1,576,815 3,120,870
11
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
(7,442,108) (7,655,398)
(4,880) 213,290
(7,446,988) (7,442,108)

12
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CDO
2014 28
2015 15
2018 21 2018 11
2019
2020 2020 27
2020 10
13
ERISA
1,000,000 2020 2019 12 31

14
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2020 2019 12 31
500,000,000
2020 12 31
2020 12 31
2026
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
849,711 286,580 282,569 280,562
2019 12 31
2025
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
263,594 255,707 5,915 1,972
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PIM
10
3,940,000
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2020 2019 12 31
712,000
PAC
2020 2019 12 31
2,850,000
2021 21
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AMENTS 1 NSV
Far the Years Ended Decemboer 51,

In UX% 2020 2019
REVENUE

Investment advisary fees, nd 2122 585 635 108,180,613

Perlormince fes 637 2dad 1,772,239

Bervice fee revenue (MNote 9 1,360, 165 GAT 479

Met imvestment income and other income il 5.582
Total revenue 124 583,076 110,624.913
OPERATING EXPENSES

Compensation and benefits 17171528 12,944 383

Professional and external services TAL14, 104 6,488 771

Drealer commissions 15 863,976 16,282 005

Service lee expense (Mote 9) @3, 537,000 70,814,077

Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates, net (Note 9) 31,681 486 28,551,256

Financing charges 10.g19 15,773

Criber operating expenses (Mote 107 1576815 320,870
Total operating expenses 167,255 828 147,217,138
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES (42672752 (36,502 222
Income 1ax expense {Mote T) B56,655 TEE 343
NET LOSS (43.520.407) (36,880L565)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS, NET OF INCOME TAXES (Note 11):

1tenis thatl may be reclussiliod subsequently Lo mncome or loss
Unrealized foreign exchange (loss)'gain on translation of foreign operations, net (34,8800 213,290
Ttems that will nat be reclassified to income or loas - -

Total other comprehensive (loas)igain Tor the year, net of incoms taxes {4 B850 213, 25H)
COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (S43.534.28T) (836,66T.275)

The sccompanying nobes are an integral pan of these Minancial Satements.
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December 31,
I UUSS 2020 2019
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2 55,748,800 22779923
Acerued imvestment advisory fees receivable, net (MNote 2) 12,099,212 11,233,515
Other recevables (Mote 4) 12,084,001 3,484,160
Deferred tax assets {Mote 7) 1659 591 13,774
Capatal assets, net (Note 3) 16,390 22,502
Other assets (Note 5) 828,272 465,760
TOTAL ASSETS 30,946, 266 17,999 634
LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY
Liabilitics
Accrued compensation and employee beneflis £1, 720,781 2813403
Accounts payvable and accrued expenses 2,631,970 5644402
Current tax liability (Note T) 1,036,107 303,732
Other liabilities (Mote &) GRE, 520 234,341
Total labilities 85,075.378 65,005 578
Member's egquity
Accounts receivable from Parent and affiliates, net (MNote 9) (81,051 845) (8736, 76T)
Contributed surplus 491 640,841 433924344
Accumulated deficit (458,271,1200 (414,741, 713)
Accumulited other comprehensive loss (Mote 1) (7.446,98%) (7442108}
Taotal member's equity 24,870, 888 11,003,756
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY 300,046 266 17,099 634

The accompanying notes are an imegral part of these fNinancial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOAWS

For the Years Ended December 31,

In USS 2020 2019
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before income taxes (542,672.752) (536,592.222)
Income tax expense (R56,655) (28R, 343)
Adjustments 1o reconcile net loss to cash flows used in operating activities:
Deferred meome taxes {155.817) (13.774)
Depreciation of capital assels 6,112 4,032
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 238504 206,013
(Increase) decrense in operaling assets:
Acerued investment advisory fees receivable {865,697 2,247 488
ther receivahles (8,599 2417 (1, 793,088)
Oither assets 26,919 206,196
Increase/{decrease) in operating liahilities;
Accrued compensation and emplovee benefits 207377 (322.850)
Accounts pavable and acorued expenses (3.012.432) 3726165
Other liabilities 22412 1493
Changes in other operating assets and liabilitics 732375 314,837
Met cash used in operating activities (54,229.435) (32,304,049
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions 1o capital assets (26.534)
Net cash used in investing activities = (26.534)
CASH FLOWS FIRROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Agcounts receivable from Parent and affiliates (Note 93 (218,650,178 (178.954.041)
Accounts pavable to Parent and affiliates (Mote 9) 276,051,597 211632417
Payments on principal portion of lease liability {198.227) (194.697)
Net cash provided by imancing activilies 37,203,192 32AR36TY
Effect of changes in exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents {4880 (38,1400
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,908,877 114,950
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,779,923 2,664,967
CASH ANDCASH EQUIVALENTS AT ENDOF YEAR 55,748,800 S2. 779,923
Supplementary Cash Flow Information:
Foreign income tax paid (Note 7) SIER. 109 252,145
Interest paid £10,819 515,773
Supplementary Non-Cash Flow Information from Financing Activities:
Contribution-in-kind received from Parent (Note 9) 558.457.597 519.221.256
Dividend-in-kind paid to Parent {(Note 9) 5741,100 51,534,500

The accompanving notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

LM
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THE PUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In USE

1. Corporate Information

The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC (the “Company” or “PAC™), including its Singapore Branch, is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Putnam Advisory Holdings 11, LLC (*PAH II"), and is an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of Putnam Investments, LLC (the “Parent” or “Putnami”), the latter of which is an indirectly
majority-owned subsidiary of Great-West Lifeco Inc, (“Lifeco™ ). The Company's ultimate pareni company is
Power Corporation of Canada. The Company is incorporated in the State of Delaware in the United States of
America. The registered office and principal place of business is located at 100 Federal Street, Boston,
Massachusetts, 02110, United States of America. The U.S. dollar (3} is the fonctional currency of the
Company.

The Company's primary business is to provide investment advisory services to institmtional clients. In
connection with providing these services, the Company receives an investment advisory fee, which is based
upon the clients’ negotiated fee rate and the average assels under management. Company revenue is largely
dependent on the total value and composition of assets under management (* AUM™), which include domestic
and intermational equity and debt assets (the “Company Funds"), accordingly, fluctuations in financial
markets and in the composition of assets under management affect revenues and results of operations.

The Company, itz Parent and its affiliates have significant interdependencies, as described in Notes 2 and 9.
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared from the separate records maintained by the
Company and may not be indicative of the financial position or the results of operations that would have
existed if the Company had been operated as an unaffiliated company.

Economic dependency

The financial statements have been appropriately prepared on the basis of accounting principles applicable 1o
a going concern, however, the continuing operations of the Company are reliant upon the ongoing support of
the Parent. The Company has an ending Member's equity of 324,870,889 and 511,003,756 at December 31,
2020 and December 31, 2019, respectively.

2. Basis of Preparation and Summary of Accounting Policies

The financial statemenis of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS") as issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board (“IASB™). The
policies set out below were consistenily applied to all the periods presented unless otherwise noted. If
applicabde, the Company will adopt, or has implemented changes in accounting policies for the adoption of
new or amended accounting standards that are relevant to the business as described in Changes fn Accounting
Policies within this Mote,

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make significant
judgments involving estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of assets and liabilities at the balance sheet dates and the reponted amounts of revenue and expenses
during the reporting period. Although some uncertainty is inherent in these judgments and estimates,
management believes that the amounts recorded are reasonable.

Beginning in Janwary 2020, global financial markets experienced significant volatility resulting from the
gpread of a novel coronavims that can canse a disease known as COVID-19. The pandemic has resulted in
travel and border restrictions, quarantines, supply chain dismptions, lower consumer demand and general
market uncertainty throughout the year.
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THE PUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In USE

The duration and impact of the COVID-19 pandemic continues to be unknown at this time. Given the
uncertainty surrounding the current environment, the actual financial resulis could differ from the estimates
made in preparation of these financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty and areas where significant judgments have been made are listed below
and discussed throughout the notes to the financial statements including:

* Inthe determination of the fair value of financial instrumenis, the Company’s management exercises
judgment in the determination of fair value inpuis (Note 2.

*  The Company operates within various tax jurisdictions where management judgments and estimates
are required when mterpreting the relevant tax laws, regulations, and legislation in the determination
of the Company’s tax provisions and the carrying amounts of its tax assets and liabilities (Mote 7).

*  Legal and other provisions are recognized resulting from past events which, in the judzment of
management, have resulted in a probable outlow of economic resources which would be passed 1o a
third-party to settle the obligation. Management uses judgment to evaluate the possible outcomes and
risks in determining the best estimate of the provision at the balance sheet date (Mote 12).

*=  The Company uses estimates to determine certain components of share-based amorntization expense
including the share price and forfeiture estimates (MNote 9).

*  Management uses judgment in determining the incremental borrowing rate used to discount lease
payments based on the applicable reference rate, coupled with a credit spread and lease specific
adjustments (Note 2},

The significant accounting policies are as follows:

Cash and Cash Equivalenis

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and demand deposits with banks, which are readily
convertible into cash. The camying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates their fair value,

Fair Value Measurement

The Company’s financial assets and liabilities recorded at fair value have been categorized based upon the
following fair value hierarchy:

Financial assets and liabilities categorized as Level 1 ntilize observable, unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access.

Financial assets and liabilities categorized as Level 2 wtilize observable inputs other than Level | unadjusted
quoted market prices. The fair values for some Level 2 secunties were obtained from pricing services. The
pricing service inputs include, but are not limited to, benchmark vields, reponted trades, broker/dealer quotes,
issuer spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark securities, offers and reference data.

Financial assets and habilities categorized as Level 3 wtilize one or more significant inputs that are not based

on observable market inputs and include situations where there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or
liability,
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THE PUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In USE

In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fmr value hierarchy.
In such cases, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement in its entirety falls
has been determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its
entirety. The Company's assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in
its entirety requires judgment and considers factors specific to the asset or liability,

The following table presents information about all of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value on both a recurring and non-recurring basis as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and indicates the
fair value hierarchy of the valuation techniques utilized by the Company to determine such fair value:

December 31, 2020

Assety measured af jair value Lewel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Other financial insruments : 24.183.213 - 24.183.213
Total finandal asseis §- £24,183213 §- £24.183.213
Liabulities measired af fair value

Other financial instruments ' . 4.352,751 . 4,352,751
Total financial Habilides §- 54,352,751 8- 54,352,781

December 51, 2019

Assets measured at far vale Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Other financial instruments - 14,717,675 - 14,717,675
Total Minandal asseis 5 - 514,717,675 5 - 514,717,675
Liabilities mearswred af fair value

Other financial instruments ' - 6,457,805 - 6,457,503
Total financial labilites § - £6,457.805 $- 56,457,505

" orther firancial instruments include Aetrued investment advisory fees receivable, Other receivables, Acaued compensation and employee
bemehits and Accounts payvable and accrued expemses.

B Other francial instruments are initially recorded at Fair value and subsequently meamred at amortized cost using the <ffective interest rate
method, The amortized cost of other inancial instruments Wm:im!:: their fair value,

During the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, there were no transfers made between any level
categories,

Other Finandal Instruments

Accrued investment advisory fees receivable, net, Other receivables, Accrued compensation and employee
benefits and Accounts payable and accmed expenses are classified as being measured at amortized cost, and
initially recorded on the Balance Sheets at fair value and subsequently measured at amoriized cost using the
effective interest rate method, unless shont-term, where interest would be insignificant. The carrying value of
Accrued investment advisory fees receivable, net, Other receivables, Accrued compensation and employee
benefits and Accounts payable and accrued expenses approximates its fair value.
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Investment Impairment

In accordance with [IFRS 9, Financeial fnstrumenis, financial assets were evaluated at December 31, 2020 and
2019, where management used judgement to assess impaimment through the expected credit loss model for
each class of financial assets. The Company’s financial assets primarily consist of cash and cash equivalents,
as well as vanous receivable balances. A majority of the Company’s receivables balance at December 31,
2020 and 2019 consists of accrued investment advisory fees, net owed from third party entities for services
performed in accordance with investment management agreements. The Company assessed the expected loss
rate on these receivables over a period of 36 months before December 31, 2020 and 2019 and concluded
based upon historical data that the risk of expected credit loss is insignificant to the Company. The remaining
receivables consist of other receivables, which based on the nature and history of the receivables, the expected
credit loss is insignificant to the Company. Cash and cash equivalents consist of liquid fimds held at banks
with high credit-ratings. The probability of defanlt for these counterparties is considered immaterial and
management concluded that the expected credit loss is insignificant 1o the Company.

In December 2009, management of the Parent fully impaired its investment in a collateralized debt obligation
(*CDO™), for which the Company was the asset manager, based upon declining market conditions. Under the
terms of its offering memorandum, the CDO was required to hold an anneal auction of its portfolio to provide
liquidity, beginming in 2017, In that same year, the CDO was successfully auctioned. In June 2019, the
Company received a final distribution from the 2017 anction that resulted in proceeds of $812,863. This
amount represents previously earned fees that were held back from the imitial payment and is recorded in
Performance fees on the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss.

Capital assets, net

Capital assels, net are carried at historical cod less accumulated depreciation computed on a graight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, which vary from three to seven vears. Capital assets are evaluated for
impairment on a quarterly basis. Assets no longer used, and the associated accumulated depreciation, are
removed from the Balance Sheets with a charge recorded in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss
for the net carrying value of the asseis. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the life of the lease.
Depreciation of capital assets for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, included in Other operating
expenses in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss, is 86,112 and 54,032, respectively,

Offsetting and Presentation of Intercompany Receivables and Payables

Intercompany receivables and payables are offset, and the net amount is presented in the Balance Sheets. This
occurs when the Company and its Parent and affiliates owe each other a determinable amount, the Company
has the right to set off the amount owed with the amount owed by the affiliates, and the Company intends to
get off the amonunt owed, and the right is enforceable by law by a Putnam Master Metting Agreement. [t is the
Company’s policy to include Accounts {receivable fromy/payable to Parent and affiliates, net as a component
of Member's equity on the Balance Sheets, as perodic settlement only occurs in the form of a non-cash
accounting transaction,
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Revenue Recognition

Investment advisory fees. net

The Company provides investment advisory services on a daily, monthly, or quarterly basis. The Company
believes the performance obligation for providing investment advisory services is satisfied over time because
the customer is receiving and consuming the benefits as they are provided by the Company. Fee amangements
are based on a contractual percentage applied to the customer’s average or period-end assets under
management. Fees are earned daily as they relate specifically to the services provided in that period, which
are distinct from the services provided in other periods, and are received monthly, quarterly, semi-annually, or
anmually. Investment advisory fees are recognized in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss, net of
expense limits and rebates of 38,836,552 and 88,610,479 for the yvears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively,

The Company, as agent, is the sponsor for a number of structured entities. These structured entities include
institutional funds and other investment products, The nature and purpose of these entities is to provide
investors with a variety of investment opporturities throngh managed investment strategies. As of December
31, 2020 and 2019, total AUM relating to the institutional portfolios and other investment products of the
Company was $28,547,400,944 and §23,165,142,39, respectively.

Performance fees

As additional consideration for the investment advisory services noted above, the Company receives fees that
vary based on specified performance measures, for example, when a fund exceeds a specified benchmark or
contractual hurdle over a contractual performance period or the life of a find. These fees are earned once
account retums have exceeded these specified performance measures and are calculated as a percentage of
account retums. These performance fees are considered variable consideration as the uncertainty is dependent
on the valne of the assets at future points in time as well as meeting a specified compound hurdle rate, both of
which are highly susceptible to factors owtside the Company's influence. Revenues are recognized once it 18
probable that a significant reversal will not occur. Performance fees recognized in the Statements of Loss and
Comprehensive Loss in the cument period are primarily related to performance obligations that have been
satisfied in prior periods and management is assured of their realization.

Service fee revenue

The Company receives revenue in accordance with a transfer pricing program established with an affiliate, in
order to compensate the Company for investment management services it provides to this affiliate, which is
presented as Service fee revenne in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss (Mote 9). The Company
believes that the performance obligation is satisfied when the operating costs are incurred, This revenue is
recognized as eamed. Service fee revenue for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 is 81,360,165 and
$657.479, respectively.

Met investment income and other income

Net investment income and other income includes interest income and dividend income, This income is
recognized in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss as eamed.

Accrued investment advisory fees receivable. net

Accrued investment advisory fees receivable, net reported in the Company’s Balance Sheets include
£12,099,212 and $11,233,515 of receivables from contracts with customers at December 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively. Al January 1. 2019, Accrued investment advisory fees receivable, net included $13 481,003 of
receivables from contracts with customers.
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Service Tee expense

The Company has established transfer pricing programs with certain of its affiliates, all of which result in the
Company paying a service fee expense 1o the affiliates based on the temns of the program. These expenses are
presented as Service fee expense on the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss (WNote 9) and are
expensed as incuwrred. Service fee expense for the yvears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 is $93 537,099
and 379,814,077, respectively.

Centain of these transfer pricing programs are with affiliates for which the Company provides all investment
advisory services related to the affiliates’ third-party clients. In exchange for these services, the Company
collects the contractual revenue and incurs the contractual expenses related to the third-party relationships.
Additional details on these arrangements are described in Note 9.

Dealer Commissions

Dealer commissions include distribution fees incurred for certain share classes of the Company Funds, which
include costs incumred at the time of the sale as well as recurring commissions based on assets under
management. Distribution fees are presented on the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss and paid by
the Company when due, pursuant to the contractual agreement.

Share-Based Paymenis

Share-based payment awards for restricted Class B shares and options on Class B shares granted to employees
under the Putnam Investments, LLC Equity Incentive Plan (the “EIP"} (Wote 9), are accounted for as equity-
settled awards. Under this method, compensation cost recognized includes compensation cost for all share-
based payment arrangements granted based on the grant-date fair value, which is determined using both the
market and income valuation approaches as outlined in the EIP. The Company uses the graded vesting
method to amortize the awards. The effect of forfeitures on restricted shares is estimated when recognizing
compensation cost. Share-based compensation is recorded as a component of Compensation and benefits on
the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,

Income Taxes

The Company elected to be treated as a disregarded entity pursuant to Treasury Regulation Section 301.7701-
3 for federal income tax purposes. Generally, disregarded entities are not subject to entity-level federal or
ftate income taxation and, as such, the Company is not required to provide for income taxes. The Company
has no U5, federal or state tax assets or labilities on its Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2020 and 2019.

The Company’s Singapore branch operation is sulject to local tax in the jurisdiction in which it 15 located.
The related current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are disclosed on the Balance Sheets at December 31,
2020 and 201%, respectively, and the related cash tax payments are made by the branch.

11
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The Company”s tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred income taxes. The Company has not
provided for any U.S. federal or state tax expense. Tax expense related to the Company®s branch operation
reflects the respective full year result of 2020 and 2019, respectively. Tax is recognized as an expense or
benefit in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items that are recognized outside profit or loss
{whether in other comprehensive loss or directly in equity), in which case the tax is recognized in other
components of the financial statements.

Under the IFRS liability method, a provision for tax uncertainties which meet the probable threshold for
recognition is measured based on the probability weighted average approach. There were no uncenain tax
positions recorded by the Company in either year presented.

Cirrent Income Tax

Current income tax is based on taxable income for the year. Current tax liabilities (assets) for the cuwrrent and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation athorities
using, the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Current tax assets
and current tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to offset the recognized amounts and
the entity intends either to settle on a net basis, or (o realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously.
The current tax expense represents the current tax obligation of the Company”s branch operation for the full
years ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019,

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred income tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences ansing between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax basis used in
the computation of taxable income. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary
differences whereas deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent it is probable that sufficient future taxable
profits will be available to utilize the asset.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or pan of the deferred
tax asset to be utilized. The unrecognized deferred tax asset is reassessed at each balance sheet date and
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled. based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off curent tax assels againg current tax liabilities and the deferred
income taxes relaie (o the same taxable anthority and the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend to settle cumrent tax liabilities and assets on a net basis. The deferred tax expense represents
movement in the overall deferred tax balances.

Foreign Currency Translation

The Company’s financial statements are prepared in United States dollars, which is the functional and
presentation cwrrency of the Company. For the foreign branch, exchange rate differences arising from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities are recorded to unrealized foreign exchange losses on translation
of foreign operations, net in Accumulated other comprehensive loss (*AQCL™).
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Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into United States dollars at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the balance sheet dates and all foreign denominated income and expense items are
translated at a monthly average of daily rates. Unrealized foreign currency translation gains and losses on the
Company’s net investment in its foreign operations are presented separately as a component of AOCL.
Unrealized gains({losses) will be recognized in MNet investment income and other income on the Statements of
Loss and Comprehensive Loss when there has been a disposal of the imvestment in the foreign operations.

Foreign currency translation gains and losses on foreign currency transactions are included in Other operating
expenses in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss.

Member's Equity

Contributed surplus represenis capital contributions made to the Company from the Parent. Accumulated
deficit represents the accumulated losses of the Company. AOCL represents the total of the wnrealized foreign
exchange gains/(losses) on translation of foreign operations, On the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive
Loss, this activity is classified by nature and grouped between items that will be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss and those that will not be reclassified. Accounts receivable from Parent and affiliates, net
represents transactions between the Company and other subsidiaries of the Parent.

Leases

Under IFRS 16, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date on the Balance Sheets,

The right-of-use asset is initially measured based on the initial amount of lease liability adjusted for any lease
paymenis made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incumred, as well as an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlving asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, less any lease incentive received. Lease modifications are treated as a new lease if the
modifications represent a substantive change in scope or consideration paid. The asset is depreciated to the
earlier of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the lease term using the straight-line method and is
included within Other assets on the Balance Sheets. Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets is included
within Other operating expenses on the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencemnent date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company shall use its incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its
incremental borrowing rate as its discount rate and the rate is applied to portfolios of leases with reasonably
similar characteristics. The lease liability is measured at amonized cost using the effective interest method
and is included within Other liabilities on the Balance Sheets. Interest expense on lease liabilities is included
within Financing charges on the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,
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Changes in Accounting Policies

The Company has implemented changes in accounting policies for the adoption of new or revised accounting

dandards, as follows:

Amendment/New Standard

Summary of Changes in Accounting Policies

[AS 1 — Presentation of Financial
Statements and [AS § -

Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors

Effective January 1, 2020, the Company adopted the gnidance
of TAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements and [TAS 8§,
Accounting Polficies, Changes in Accouniing Estimates and
Errors. The amendments clarfy that information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence the decisions that the pnmary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements, which provide financial information about

a specific reporting entity.

The adoption of these amendments had no impact on the
Company’s financial statements,

Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in [FRLS
Standards

Effective January 1, 2020, the Company adopted the gnidance
in Amendments to References to the Concepiual Framework in
FFRS Steandards, which updates which version of the framework
the pronouncements were referencing or indicates that
definitions in the standard have not been updated with the new
definitions developed in the revised Conceptual Framework.
The amendments related to IFRS 2, Shaved-based Pavment, IAS
1, Presentation of Financial Statements, 1AS 8, Accounting
Folicies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Erors, TAS 37,
Provisions, Centingent Liabilities and Contingenr Assets, TAS
38, Intangible Assers, S1C-32, and Diangible Assets - Web Site
Cosis,

The adoption of these amendments had no impact on the
Company’s financial statements.
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3

Capital Assels, net

The carrying value of capital assets, and the changes in the camrying value of capital assets, are as follows:

Carrying value, beginning of year
Less: accumulated depreciation

Met camrying value, beginning of vear
Retirements

Depreciation

Accumulated depreciation retirements
Carrying value, end of year

Less: accumulated depreciation

Net carrying valoe, end of year

Carrying value, beeinning of vear
Less: accumulated depreciation

Met camrying value, beginning of vear
Additions

Depreciation

Carrying value, end of year

Less: accumulated depreciation

Net carrying valoe, end of year

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

“Furniture and EDP Leasehold
fixtures Equipment  Improvemmis Total
£7,296 $131,.506 £388,203 £527,005
(435) (117,708) {386,360) (504,503)
6,861 13,798 1.843 22,502
- (20,555) - (20,555)
(1,043) (3.247) (1.822 (6,112)
- 20,555 - 20,553
7,296 110,951 388,203 506450
{1,478) (100,400} (388 182) (490, 060)
§5.518 §10,551 521 16,390
_ For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
Furniture and EDP Leasehold
lixtures Equipment Improvemenis Tatal
5- 5115272 £385,199 £500,471
= (115272} (385199} (500.471)
7,296 16,234 3004 26,534
{435) {2.436) (1.161) (4,033)
7,296 131,506 388,203 527,005
(435) (117,708) {386,360) (504,503)
§6,861 $13,798 $1.543 $22,502
15
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4. Other Receivables

Other receivables consist of the following:

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

Insurance reimbursement $11.867.221 83,291,234
Rent deposit 131,104 116,507
Other receivable 85,676 76,419
Tuotal 12,084,001 £3,454, 100

5. Other Assets

Other assets consist of the following:
Decermber 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

Prepaid assets 223,401 £248791
Right-of-use assets 604,871 215441
Other assets - 1,528
Total 5828,272 5465,760

6. Other Liabilities

Other liabilities consist of the following:
Decemnber 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

Lease liabilities 667,623 £215,766
Other liabilities 18,898 18,375
Total F686,520 $234.341

Income Taxes

{a) The Company has cwrrent tax liabilities related to its branch operation. Tax payable for the branch is as

follows:

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Current tax liability, net, beginning of year 5303732 3248,269
Expenses during vear 1,012,472 302,117
Payments made on account (288,109) (252,145)
Other 8,012 5,491
Current tax liability, net, end of year £1.036,107 £303,732
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(b} The following table idemtifies the major components of Deferred tax assets at December 31, 2020 and
2019
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Performance compensation 5148 364 10,486
Other 21,227 3288
Deferred tax assets 3169591 813774

{c) Income tax expense for the vear is comprised of current and deferred taxes:

{1} Current tax

For the vear ended For the year ended

December 31, 2020 December 31, 201%
Current tax expénse $1,012472 £302,117
Total current tax £1.012,472 302,117
(i) Deferred tax

For the year ended For the year ended

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Origination and reversal of temporary difference (5155817} {£13.7741
Total deferred (ax expense (S155.817) (£13,774)
Total income tax expense $556,655 3258,343

The Company does not have any unrecognized tax benefits recorded in the vears ended December 31, 2020
and 2019, The Company’s policy is to include penalties and interest related to uncertain tax positions in its
income tax provision. During the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company did not recognize
any interest and penalties in its income tax provision and does not have any accrued interest and penalties at
December 31, 2020 and 2019, The Company's U.5. Federal and Stale net operating losses are subject to
adjustment and examination for tax years ending December 31, 2007 and thereafer.

The Company's branch located in Singapore is taxed at the statwtory rate of 17% for both the years ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019, with exemption and rebate allowed up to a nominal amount,
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8. Leases

The Company leases buildings for office space and equipment used in the normal course of operations. These
leases have remaining terms of between 2 and 3 years.

(a) Right-ol-use assets

Right-ofuse asset  Right-oFuseasset  Right-of-use asset

December 31, 2020 Property Equipment Total
Balance, beginning of the year £203,600 511,841 $215,441
Additions 627,994 - 627,994
Accomulated depreciation (233,5700 {4,994) (238 564)
Net carrying amount, end of year §598.024 86,847 $604,871

Right-ofuse asset  Right-oFuseasset  Right-of-use asset

December 31, 2019 Property Equipm ent Total
Balance, beginning of the year 406,249 §- 8406,249
Additions - 15,207 15,207
Accomulated depreciation (202,649) {3,366) (206,015)
Net carrying amount, end of year $203,600 §11.841 $215.441

Initial recognition of the right-of-use assets and lease labilities, as well as subsequent additions and lease
modifications, represent non-cash activities and accordingly are not presented in the Statement of Cash Flows.
The right-of-use asset additions presented above approximate the impact on the lease liabilities,

The Company leases an office building in Singapore and equipment.
There were no leases with residual value guarantees or leases not vet commenced to which the Company is

commitied, and there were no costs relating to variable lease paymenis that do not depend on an index or rate
for the years ended December 31, 2020 or 2019, The total cash outflow for leases amounted to $208,662 and

£210,470 for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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(b) Lease liabilities

Maturity Analysis

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
2021 £243.131 220 S214, 700
2022 239,382 2021 5,528
2023 237.507 i e ) 1,843
S720,020 8222.071
Lesz: Unearned interest (52,397) Less: Uneamed interest (5.305)
667,623 8215, 706
Analyvzed as:
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Current 214,624 203,615
MNot-current 452000 12,151
667,623 215,766

9. Related Party Transactions

The Company has significant interdependencies with its Parent and its affiliates, which are described below.
The Company is responsible for and has established processes to identify all related parties and to disclose all
gignificant transactions involving related parties.

Accounts receivable from Parent and affiliates, net

The Company instructs third-parties to remit cash directly to the Parent or affiliates and instructs the Parent to
disburse cash on its behalf, The receivables on the Balance Sheets represent amounts for which the Parent has
vet to receive on the Company’s behalf. The Parent also allocates certain expenses to the Company. Accounts
receivable from Parent and affiliates, net represents the net of intercompany transactions between the
Company, the Parent and affiliates due to (1) the above mentioned receipt and payment of cash by the Parent
on its behal f (ii) intercompany service fees and allocation of expenses from/to other affiliated subsidiaries of
the Parent and (11} subordinated debt. On March 31, 2010, Putnam Investments Canada ULC (“PIC ULC™)
executed a non-interest bearing subordination agreement with the Company in the amount of $6,740,991. The
repayment of this amount is subordinate to the claims of the other creditors of PIC ULC. The loan has no
maturity date, and repayment is not expected within one vear.

These balances are recorded as corresponding increases or decreases in the Member's equity section of the
Balance Sheets as the Company neither pays or receives, nor anticipates paying or receiving cash related to
these balances. The gross changes in receivable and payable for the year related to these transactions are
disclosed separately on the Statements of Cash Flows as financing activities. As of December 31, 2020 and
2019, the Company had a net intercompany receivable balance of ($1,051,845) and ($736,767) respectively,
which is included in Accounts receivable from Parent and affiliates, net in the Balance Sheets.
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Intercompany balances due o (from) affiliates as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

Mon-interest bearing, unsecured receivable

Due from Putnam U5, Holdings [ ("PUSHI") (54.221.434) (56,492 992)
Due from PIC ULC (9.181,330) (8.592,762)
Due from Putnam Fiduciary Trust Company, LLC ("PFTC) (11,814,299 (8,050,121)
Duie to Putnam Investor Services, Inc. ("PSERWV™) 196,421 183,429
Due to Putnam Investments Australia Pty Ltd. ("PLA") 335491 2641
Due to Putnam Investments Securities Co., Lid, - Japan ("PISCO™) 260,458 407,908
Due (from) to Putnam Investments {Ireland) Limited ("PIIL") (631,845) 422,278
Due to Putnam Retail Management LP ("FEM") 2,763,192 2351458
Due to Putnam Investments Limited - UK ("PIL") 3,105,429 3910823
Due to Putniam Investments Managernent, LLC ("PIM") 18,136,072 14,780,571
Total accounts receivable from Parent and afMliates, net (51,051,845) (5736,767T)

Revenue and Expenses earned from/paid to Affiliates

A portion of the Investment advisory fees, net included in revenue on the Statements of Loss and
Comprehensive Loss is attributed to sub-advised institutional clients and an affiliate who are related parties.

The total revenne and ending AUNM for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

For the Year Endead For the Year Ended
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Related Party Revenue §10.265,071 §5,931,752
Related Party AUM $4.503 415714 §2.116,683 812

The receivables associated with the revenue received from these related parties are $303,260 and §1,121,509
as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and are included in Accmed investment advisory fees
receivable, net on the Balance Sheets.

In addition to the sub-advisory fee income disclosed above, the Company receives revenue for investment
advisory services it provides to certain affiliated funds. Of the Investment advisory fees, net on the Statements
of Loss and Comprehensive Loss, approximately 2% and 81% was earned from these affiliates respectively,
for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019,

The Company also incurs expenses from certain affiliates for sub-advisory services that the affiliates provide
for centain institutional portfolios. Total expenses paid to affiliates for the vears ended December 31, 2020

and 2019 are 340,367 and $383,110, respectively, and are included in Other operating expenses on the
Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,
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Transfer Pricing Programs

The Company has multiple transfer pricing arrangements, the first group being with certain of its affiliates in
which the Company receives the contractual third-party revenue and also incurs the contractual third party
expenses as compensation for the investment advisory services it performs for the affiliates, These agreements
are summarized below.

Effective January 1, 2019, a transfer pricing agreement was established between the Company and PFTC to
compensate the Company for investment advice and securities trading services it provides to PFTC. The
terms of the transfer pricing agreement allow for PFTC to receive a retum on its gross revenue to account for
its fduciary rsk and for PAC to receive the contractual fees and expenses as it performs all remaining
functions and bears all remaining risk. The Company also has a transfer pricing agreement with PIC ULC and
PIIL in which the Company performs all investment management services on behalf of these affiliates. The
Company collects the contractual revenue and assumes the contractual expenses on behalf of the two
affiliates, and in exchange pays a service fee expense based on the affiliates’ assets under management.

The total impact of the assumption of the contractual revenoe and expenses by the Company as a result of
these transfer pricing agreements on the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss {(excluding service fee
expenses, which are disclosed separately in the subsequent service fee paragraphs) is summarized by financial
datement line item.

Coniracinal revenue and associated expenses (PFTC, PIC ULC, and PIIL)

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2020

For the Year Ended
December 31, 20019

Revenue
Investment advisory fees, net 577,665,437 566,824,007
Total revenue 77,665,437 66,824,007
Operaling expenses
Professional and external services 2.696,%62 2879350
Dealer comm issions 12 463,112 14,113 088
Other operating expenses £0,302 117,882
Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates, net - 13,773,073
Total operating expenses 16,240,376 30,883,393
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES S61.425,061 £35.940.614

Service Fee Revenue received from Affiliates

Additionally, as described in the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, the Company received
$1,360,165 and 3657479 of revenue for the vears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, pursuant
to a transfer pricing agreement with an affiliate. This revenue is included in Service fee revenue in the
Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,

21
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Service Fee Expense paid to Affiliates

Finally, as described in the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, the Company incurred $93,537,099
and $79.814,077 for the vears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, pursuant to transfer pricing
agreements with certain of its foreign and domestic affiliates. This expense is included in Service fee expense
in the Statemenis of Loss and Comprehensive Loss and is outlined below by affiliate:

Transfer pricing Methodology Wear Ended Wear Ended
Affiliate December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
PIL Cost Plus 1(%% 513,186,906 511,985,579
PISCO Cost Plus 9% 4,001,947 4,562,858
Pl Cost Plus 10P% 893,803 1118869
PIIL 9 bps on average AUM 2,339,858 2,264,478
PIC ULC 9 bps on ending AUM 4,064,517 3245410
PFFTC 2,28% of gross revenue 1,304,802 1,114,561
PIM Various* 67,745,266 55522322
Jotal service fee expense paid to affiliates 203,537,009 579,814,077

*#bps on fixed income AUM, 32.5 bps on equities AUM and 20.25 bps on global asset allocation ATUM

Intercompany Settlement

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company distributed $741,100 as a non-cash dividend-in-kind
Lo the Parent and received 558,457,597 a2 a non-cash contribwion-in-kind from the Parent as a result of a
aroup-wide exercise carried out by the Parent to reassign and seitle historical intercompany balances between
Putnam affiliates. The Company's Contributed surplus and Accounts receivable from Parent and affiliates,
net were reduced as a result of these transactions.

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company distributed $1,534, 500 as a non-cash dividend-in-
kind to the Parent and received $19,221,256 as a non-cash contribution-in-kind from the Parent as a result of
a group-wide exercise carried out by the Parent to reassign and settle historical imtercompany balances
between Putnam affilistes. The Company’s Contributed surplus and Accounts receivable from Parent and
affiliates, net were reduced as a result of these transactions.

Retirement Plan

The Company, the Parent, and affiliates of the Parent sponsor a tax-qualified 401(k) defined contribution
retirement plan (the “Flan™) covering substantially all emplovees, Under this Plan, employees may defer a
percentage of eligible compensation into the Plan, subject to certain limitations, a portion of which is matched
by the Company. The Company also provides for an annual discretionary contribution as determined by the
Parent"s Board of Directors. For the vears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company’'s share of the
annual expense to the Plan totaled £326,256 and $313,752, respectively. These amounts are included in
Compensation and benefits in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,

Capitalized Software

The Parent capitalizes certain costs related to software developed for intemal use as long-lived assets, The
amortization expense is allocated to each subsidiary of the Parent, by PUSH I, based on the subsidiary’s
usage of each capitalized software project. These costs were amortized on a straight -line basis over the lesser
of five vears or the estimated useful life. Overall amontization expense allocated to the Company during the
yvears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 was 51,375,346 and §1,186,340, respectively.

2
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Dealer Commissions

The Company paid to a broker'dealer, affiliated with the Parent, dignbution costs for the sales of certain
share classes of the Company Funds pursuant to the contractual agreement. For the year ended December 31,
2020, the Company paid the affiliated broker'dealer $2.400,863. This charge is included in Dealer
cormmissions in the Statement of Loss and Comprehensive Loss.

Equity Incentive Compensation

The Parent sponsors the Putnam Investments, LLC EIP. Centain employees of the Company are eligible 1o
participate in the EIP, under which they are eligible to receive restricted shares of the Parent's Class B
common shares and Class B stock options.

The Parent recognizes expense for awards granted under the EIP over the stated vesting period and based on
the grant date fair value of the award. A portion of these expenses is allocated to the Company in a manner
consistent with the grant of such share-based payments.

The Company accounts for the awards issued under the EIP as equity awards in accordance with the IFRS 2
guidance related to share-based payment transactions among group emtities. The Company receives the
services of the employees granted the share awards but has no obligation to settle the share awards. That
obligation belongs to the Parent.

The Company has employees who were granted restricted Class B common shares of the Parent pursuant 1o
the EIP. The Company was also allocated a portion of the compensation charged to the Parent. The fair
market value of the Class B common shares was determined using both the market and income valuation
approaches as ontlined in the EIP, which includes consideration of the range of values determined by a
natiomally recogmized independent valuation firm chosen by the EIP Committee. Compensation expense for
these awards is being amonized over the vesting pericd of up to five yvears. Compensation expense directly
charged to the Company for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 was $1,337,653 and $794,334,
respectively, and 15 included in Compensation and benefits in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive
Loss, Compensation expense allocated to the Company for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 was
8506,658 and $349,159, respectively, and is included in Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates, net in
the Statements of Loss and Other Comprehensive Loss, As of December 31, 2020, there was $5,955,194 of
unrecognized compensation expense related to the Company’s portion of restricted Class B common shares,
The weighted average period over which that expense is expected 1o be recognized 15 3.30 vears. During the
vear ended December 31, 2020, the Company repurchased restricted Class B common shares with a cash
seftlement of $334,351.

Restricted Class B Shares

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 For the Year Ended Decemnber 31, 2019

Weighted Average Weighted Average
Grant Date Grant Date
Shares Fair Valae Shares Fair Value
Univested balance ab January 1 323,394 21607 226,600 £17.71
Giranted 199 150 11.50 139,194 14.71
Viested (54,100 15.90 (31,400 21.85
Transferred 11,5845 1502 - -
Forfeited (9.426) 1592 (11,000) 16.28
Unwvested balance al December 31 470,596 £13.79 323,304 £16.07
23
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Key Management Compensation

Key management of the Company includes certain executives of the Parent that have the authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company. The individuals that
comprise the key management personnel are the Board of Directors, as well as certain kev management and
officers. A portion of the compensation eamed by these individuals is allocated to the Company on the same
basis as the other expense allocations from the Parent and is included in Allocated expenses from Parent and
affiliates, net on the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss as follows:

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

Salary 416,543 £389,551
Share-based compensation 601,773 379,454
Amnnual non-share-based incentive compensation 2277464 2,174,713
All other compensation FB.0687 -
Total compensation 53,334,467 2,943,718

Allocated Expenses from Parent and affiliates, net

The Company shares office facilities, personnel and other amangements further described in this note with
other subsidiaries of the Parent. Accordingly, the related costs of such arrangements have been allocated by
the Parent and by affiliates among the varouns subsidiares in a manner which management believes is
representative of the actual costs incurred, This includes the costs associated with capitalized software and
key management compensation as disclosed above. Additionally, in the course of the Company’s day-to-day
business operations certain personnel from other subsidiaries of the Parent are utilized to support the
Company, the related costs of which have been allocated to the Company, in a manner which management
believes is representative of actual costs incurred. The Company also allocates certain of its own costs among
varions affiliales in a manner which management believes is representative of the aciual costs incurred.

During the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company was allocated 331,681,486 and
£28.551.256 of costs, respectively, as outlined below. These charges are included in Allocated expenses from
Parent and affiliates, net in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss.

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

General & Administrative Expense from PUSH [ §20,668,138 §18.962,359
Institutional Expense to PRM {485430) {496, 566)
Global Investment Strategies Expense from PRM 1,703,939 1,664 855
Marketing Expense from PRM 3,284,563 2,061,219
Defined Contribution Investment Only Expense from PREM 5,745,325 4,764,235
Defined Contnbution Operations Exp ense from PSERY 764,951 695,124
Total Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates, net $31,6581 486 $18.551,05%
o
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10. Other Operating Ex penses
Other operating expenses consist of the following:

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
December 31, 2020 December 31, 20019

Facility maimtenance & utilities 57671 $417 388
Indusstry dues & Aling fees 356,776 408 449
Lease depreciation expense - property 233,711 202 549
Travel & Entertainment 197077 913 465
Expenses paid to affiliates 40,367 383110
Depreciation of capital assets 6,112 4032
Leaze depreciation expense - equipnent 4,998 3366
Rent - 1957
Miscellancous other operating expenses 230,103 Tih 454
Total other operating expenses 51,576 815 £3,120.570

11. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Unrealized Foreign Exchange Loss on Translation of
Foreign Operations, net

For the ¥ ear Ended Far the ¥ ear Ended

December 31, 2020 December 31, 20019
Balance, beginning of year (57,442,108) (57,655 .39%)
Other comprehensive (loss)'gaan, net {4.820) 213290
Balance, end of year (57446 988) (57.442,108)

12. Commitments and Contingendes

Clafms, Leowsuits, Provisions and Other Contingencies

From time to time, the Company is subject to legal actions, including class actions, arising in the normal

course of business, It is not expected that any of these legal actions will have a material adverse effect on the
financial position of the Company.

In addition, the Company receives inquiries, including requests for documents and information, in the course
of its business from various state and federal regulators inquiring about certain of the Company’s policies and
procedures. Each of these matters 15 handled in the ordinary course of business. The Company fully responds
to these requests and fully cooperates with all regulatory inquines, and there are no such matters pending that
the Company believes could have a material adverse effect on its results of operations, cash flows or financial
position.
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Other Litigation

The Company became a defendant in an action that alleges the Company viclated state law by allowing
another entily 1o pick poor performing assets (underlying collateral} for a CDO. Claims against the Company
are for frand, negligent misrepresentation, and neglizgence, The Company filed a motion to dismiss, which
was granted on April 28, 2014, Litigant filed an appeal and on April 15, 2015 the Conrt reversed the district
court’s dismissal and remanded the case to the district court for further proceedings. Cross motions for
summary judgement were filed on September 21, 2018, Oral arguments were held on November 7, 2018, In
September 2019, the Court granted in part and denied in pat Putnam’s Motion for Summary Judgment. The
trial started on July 6, 2020, On August 27, 2020 the Court issned an opinion finding for Putnam on all
counts. A judgment was entered September 10, 2020 and the litizant did not file an appeal. This legal matter
is now closed after the litigant reimbursed the Company for certain costs.

13. Capital Management

The Parent monitors the amount of consolidated capital available, and the amounts deploved in ils various
operating subsidianes, including the Company. The amount of capital deployed in any particular company or
country is dependent upon local regulatory requirements as well as the Parent’s internal assessment of capital
requirements in the context of its operational risks and requirements and strategic plans. The Parent’s practice
is to maintain the Company’s capitalization at a level that will exceed the relevant minimum regulatory
capital requirements in the jurnsdictions in which they operate.

The Company must maintain minimum member's equity of $1,000,000 in certain jurisdictions subject to rules
under the Employee Retirement Income Secunty Act (“"ERISA™). During the years ended December 31, 2020
and 2019, respectively, the Company was in compliance with all minimum capital requirements.

14. Risk Management

The Company has policies relating to the identification, measurement, monitonng, mitigating and controlling
of risks associated with financial instruments, The key risks related to financial instruments are credit risk,
liquidity risk and market risk (currency. interest rate and equity). The following sections describe how the
Company manages each of these nisks.

Management is responsible for establishing capital management procedures for implementing and monil oring
the capital plan. The Board of Directors of the Parent reviews and approves all material capital transactions
undertaken by management.

(a)Credit Risk

Credit risk is the nsk for financial loss resulting from the failure of debtors making payments when due.
The Company regularly reviews its credit exposure from each counterparty. The Company monitors iis
credit risk management policies continuously to evaluate their effectiveness. These policies include, but
are not limited to, dealing only with creditworthy counterpanties, and obtaining sufficient collateral, where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the nsk of financial loss from defaults. The maximum credit
exposure is the carying value of the assets on the Balance Sheets, net of any allowances for losses. There
are no allowances for vears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019,

26
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(b Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the nisk that the Company will not be able to meet all cash outflow obligations as they
come due. The following policies and procedures are in place to manage this risk:

* The Company closely manages operating liquidity through cash flow matching of assets and liabilities.

* The Company has the financial suppon of its Parent, which maintains a $500,000,000 revolving credit
agreement with a consortium of banks.

# The Company does not have a significant amount of financial assets that are past due at December 31,
2020,

¢ The Company anticipates that its financial liabilities will mature within the next fiscal yvear,

In the normal course of business, the Company enters into contracts that give rise to commitments of
fture minimum payments that impact short-term and long-term liquidity,

Payvments due by vear as of December 31, 2020
Total 2021 2022 2023 2024 2023 Thereafier
Leases 849,711 5286,580 5282,569 $280,562 - & 3

Payments due by vear as of December 31, 2019
Total 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Thercafter

Leases $263.5%4 §$255,707 £5,915 51,972 &- §- §-

(c) Market Risk

Market nisk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will Auctuate as a
result of changes in market factors, Market factors include three types of nisks: currency risk, interest rate
risk, and equity risk.

(1) Currency Risk
Currency risk relates (o the Company operating in different cuwrrencies and converting non-U. 5, dollar
earnings at different points in time at different foreign exchange levels when adverse changes in
foreign currency exchange rates occur. The Company's financial instruments are generally
denominated in U, 5. dollars and do not have significant exposure to changes in foreign exchange rates.

(it} Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate nisk exists if asset and lability cash flows are not closely matched, and interest rates
change causing a difference in value between the asset and liability. The Company, through instruction
from the Parent, monitors interest rate risk by regulardy assessing this risk and establishing policies and
practices to protect against the adverse effects of these potential exposures. The Company's primary
exposures to intered rate risk arise from fee revenue earned by the Company that is dependent on the
debt pontfolios of Putnam sponsored funds, A one percent increase or decrease in the vield of these
funds wounld have resulted in a change in net loss of approximately 3833,000 and $712,000 for the
years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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(iii) Equity Risk
Equity nisk is the uncertainty associated with the valuation of assets arising from changes in equity
markets. The Company through instruction from the Parent has investment policy guidelines in place
that provide for prudent investment in equity markets with clearly defined limits to mitigate price risk,
The Company’s primary exposure o equity risk anses from fee revenue earned by the Company that is
dependent on the equity portfolios of PIM sponsored funds and PAC institutional clients. A ten percent

increase of decrease in equity markets would have resulted in a change in net loss of approximately
£3,940,000 and 52,850,000 for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

15. Subsequent Events

The Company evaluated subsequent events and transactions ocowrring after December 31, 2020 through May
21, 2021, the date these financial statemenis were authorized for issue, The Company is not aware of any
subsequent events which would require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.
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Putnam International Distributors,Ltd.
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Report of Independent Auditors

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of
Putnam Diversified Income Trust (Cayman) Master Fund and to MaplesFS Limited solely in its capacity as
trustee of Putnam Diversified Income Trust (Cayman)

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman)
(comprised of Putnam Diversified Income Trust (Cayman) Master Fund and Putnam Diversified Income Trust
(Cayman)) (collectively the "Fund"), which comprise the combined statements of financial position as of April 30,
2021 and 2020, and the related combined statements of comprehensive income (loss), of changes in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable units, and of cash flows for the years then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statementsin accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statementsthat are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financia statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
we consider internal control relevant to the Fund's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statementsin
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund' s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Fund as of April 30, 2021 and 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
August 12, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

To the Officers of
The Puthnam Advisory Company, LLC:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC (the “Company”),
which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the related statements of loss and
comprehensive loss, changes in member's equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the

financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our auditsin
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
mi sstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financia
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statementsin order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates

made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of
The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Notes 1, 2, and 9, the Company has significant transactions with its Parent and its affiliates. These
financial statements may not necessarily be indicative of the financial position or the results of operations had the
Company been operated as an unaffiliated company. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Deloitte & Touche LLP

May 21, 2021
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